
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 3, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – FEBRUARY 3, 2020 

 
Board Room                Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters  
(SCHEDULED ONE HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Danny Breeding – Bradshaw Memorial Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

1.   Phoenix Fleming – RC Animal Shelter Fund Raiser - Lebanon Middle School  
 
PRESENTATION 
 

1. Dr. Michelle Meister & Josh Horner – RC Animal Shelter ……………………….A-1 
 

2. Missy Carter – RC Community Work Program 
 

3. Rob Goldsmith – People Inc. – Annual Report 
 

4. Toby Edwards – CPWMA – RC BOS & CPWMA Transfer Station User Agreement  
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 3, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
5. Rick Barton – Cleveland Trails Proposal  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. County Noise Ordinance (New) 
 

2. County Litter Ordinance (Update - Enacted 12/2010) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of January 13, 2020 
b. Unapproved minutes of January 21, 2020           

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS.  
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..C-1 
 

1. CPWMA Transfer Station User Agreement 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. U.S. Census Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP)………………………...D-1 
 

2. VCCS & VDSS Joint Supportive Services…………………………………………..D-2 
 

3. 2020 Legislative Forum: 1/21/20 – 1/23/20 Richmond, Virginia…..………..……D-3 
 

4. Heather Powers – RC Tourism Coordinator………………………………………..D-4 
 

5. County Registrar’s Office Computers……………………………………………….D-5 
 

REQUESTS 
  

1. RC Project Management Services Contract………………………………………..D-6 
 

2. Virginia Next Generation 9-1-1 Proposal Acceptance Letter (PAL)…………….D-7 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 3, 2020 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
3. Mutual Aid Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services for                                  

Russell County and Scott County, Virginia………….……………………………..D-8 
 

4. Virginia General Assembly Resolution of Support of the “Get a Skill,                                             
Get a Job, Give Back” (G3) Initiative…………………………………………………D-9 
 

5. Travel Requests……………………….…………………………………………………D-10 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………K 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….N 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..O   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by _________________, second by ___________ and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A) (1), (3), (5), (7), (8). 

The vote was: 
Aye:  ________ 
Nay:  ________  

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace -  

Lou Ann Wallace -   

Carl Rhea -  

Steve Breeding -  

David Eaton -  

Rebecca Dye -  

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by _______________, second by _________________ and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  _______ 
Nay:  _______ 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors Information Item 
137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting:   2/3/20         6:00 PM 
 

 
Acknowledgements 
 

1.   Phoenix Fleming – RC Animal Shelter Fund Raiser - Lebanon Middle School  
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

No Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
• Award  



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 2/3/20           6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 
1. Dr. Michelle Meister & Josh Horner – RC Animal Shelter ……………………….A-1 

 
2. Missy Carter – RC Community Work Program 

 
3. Rob Goldsmith – People Inc. – Annual Report 

 
4. Toby Edwards – CPWMA – RC & CPWMA Transfer Station User Agreement  

 
5. Rick Barton – Cleveland Trails Proposal 

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 2/3/20     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 
1. County Noise Ordinance (New) 

 
2. County Litter Ordinance (Update - Enacted 12/2010) 
  

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Resolution  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct Public Hearings on Monday, 
February 3, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning the adoption of the “Noise 
Ordinance” and “Litter Ordinance”. 

A copy of the proposed Noise and Litter Ordinances are available for review in the 
Office of the County Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during normal 
business hours.   

In addition, the ordinances are posted on the County’s Website at   
http://www.russellcountyva.us/257/Ordinances-Resolutions and on RussellCountyVA 
App on Google Play Store. 

The Public Hearings will be held in the Russell County Government Conference 
Room at the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, 
Virginia during the regular February 2020 monthly meeting. 

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/257/Ordinances-Resolutions


 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF RUSSELL 
PERTAINING TO NOISE CONTROL AND IMPOSING 

PENALTIES FOR EXCESSIVE NOISE 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA, THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCES NEWLY 
ADOPTED: 

 
NOISE CONTROL 

 
Section 1.  Declaration of policy. 

At certain levels, noise can be detrimental to the health, welfare, safety and 

quality of life of inhabitants of the county, and in the public interest noise should be 

controlled. It is, therefore, the policy of the county to reduce noise in the county and to 

prohibit unnecessary, excessive, and annoying noises from all sources subject to its police 

power. 

Section 2. Definitions. 

For the purposes of this article, certain terms shall have the meanings ascribed to 

them in this section, unless the contest clearly indicates otherwise: 

Dwelling complex means an apartment complex, residential condominium or any 

other collection of dwelling units, which are located on a single tract, or parcel of real 

property. 

Dwelling unit means one or more rooms arranged, designed or intended to be 

occupied as separate living quarters by one or more persons and including permanent 

provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation. 

Large party public nuisance means a gathering of ten or more people where the 

gathering is not contained within a structure, but spills outdoors into balconies, yards, 

common areas, parking lots, or other outdoor spaces, which creates a noise disturbance. 

Motor vehicle means every vehicle defined as a motor vehicle by § 46.2-100 of 

the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. 

Noise disturbance means any sound which by its character, intensity and duration: 

(1) Endangers or injures the health or safety of persons within the 

county, or 



 

(2) Annoys or  dis turbs  reasonable persons of  normal  

sensi t ivi t ies  within the county. 

Public property means any real property owned or controlled by the county or any 

governmental entity. 

Real right-of-way means any street, avenue, boulevard, highway, sidewalk or 

alley.  
 
Real property boundary means the property line along the ground surface, and its 

vertical extension, which separates the real property owned by one person from that 

owned by another person. 

Residential has reference to single-family, two-family, and multifamily zoning 

district classifications, pursuant to the Russell County Zoning Ordinance. 

Sound means an oscillation in pressure, particle displacement, particle velocity, or 

other physical parameter, in a medium with internal forces that cause compression and 

rare fraction of characteristic of sound, including duration, intensity and frequency. 

Section 3. Noise disturbances – Prohibited generally. 

It shall be a public nuisance for any person to willfully make, permit to be made, 

continue or cause to be made, permitted or continued any noise disturbance and upon 

being found guilty thereof, such person shall be subject to a fine of not less than $100.00 

and not more than $500.00 for each violation. 

Section 4. Same – Specific prohibitions. 

Subject, to the exceptions provided in Section 5, any of the following acts, or the 

causing or permitting thereof, among others, is declared to be a noise disturbance 

constituting a public nuisance in violation of this ordinance, but such enumeration shall 

not be deemed to be exclusive: 

(1) Radios, television sets, musical instruments and similar devices. 

Operating, playing or permitting the operation or playing of any radio, amplifier, 

television, record, tape or compact disc player, drum, musical instrument or 

similar device: 

a. On Sunday through Thursday, between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 

8:00 a.m. and on Friday and Saturday, between the hours of 

midnight and 8:00 a.m. in such manner as to be heard across a 



 

residential real property boundary or when the sound source is 

located within or on the grounds of a dwelling complex in such 

manner as to permit sound to be heard within any dwelling unit of 

the dwelling complex other than a dwelling unit from which sound 

emanates; or 

b. When the sound source is located within or upon a motor vehicle 

on or upon public right-of-way or public property or on the 

grounds of a dwelling complex and the sound can be heard more 

than 50 feet from its source. 

(2) Loudspeakers, public address systems and sound trucks. 

a. Using, operating, or permitting the operation of any 

loudspeaker, public address system, mobile sound vehicle or 

similar device amplifying sound therefrom on a public right-of-

way or public property for any commercial purposes; or 

(3) Horns, whistles, etc. Sounding or permitting the sounding of any horn, 

whistle or auditory sounding device on or in any motor vehicle on any 

public right-of-way or public property, except as a warning of danger. 

(4) Yelling, shouting, etc. Yelling, shouting, whistling or singing between the 

hours of 11:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. from Sunday through Thursday, and 

between the hours of midnight to 8:00 a.m. on Friday and Saturday, so as 

to create a noise disturbance across a residential real property boundary or 

on a public right-of-way or public property or so as to create a noise 

disturbance to any occupant of a dwelling unit in a dwelling complex other 

than a dwelling unit from which such noise emanates. 

(5) Schools, public buildings, churches and hospitals. The creation of any 

noise disturbance within any school, court, public building, church or 

hospital or on the grounds thereof. 

(6) Any large party public nuisance as defined hereinabove, occurring at any 

hour of the day or night. 



 

Section 5. Same – Exceptions. 

Sections 3 and 4 of this ordinance shall have no application to any sound 

generated by any of the following: 

(1) Sound which is reasonably necessary for the protection or preservation of 

property or the health, safety, life or limb of any person. 

(2) Non-commercial public speaking and public assembly activities conducted 

on any public right-of-way or public property for which a permit has been 

issued by the county, within such hours, at such locations and with such 

other limitations as may be imposed for the issuance of the permit. 

(3) Radios, sirens, horns and bells on police, fire or other emergency response 

vehicles when operated pursuant to the intended purposes of such 

vehicles. 

(4) Parades, fireworks, school-related activities and other special events or 

activities for which a permit has been issued by the county, within such 

hours, at such locations and subject to such other limitations as may be 

imposed as conditions for the issuance of the permit. 

(5) Activities on or in municipal and school athletic facilities and on publicly 

owned property and facilities which have been specifically authorized in 

advance by the owner or agent in charge of such property or facility; 

provided that such activities do not take place between the hours of 11:00 

p.m. and 8:00 a.m., on Sunday through Thursday, or between the hours of 

midnight and 8:00 a.m., on Friday and Saturday. 

(6) Fire alarms and burglar alarms complying with Chapter 3.1 of this Code. 

(7) The operation of mobile lawn and garden equipment powered by an 

internal combustion engine such as lawn mowers, pressure washers, weed 

eaters, leaf blowers and chain saws; provided the operation of such 

equipment is limited to the hours of 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m., and such 

equipment is operated with the original manufacturer’s equipped or 

equivalent muffler(s) or other sound dissipating devices. 

(8) The construction, repair, maintenance, demolition or alteration of 

structures; streets and other vehicular ways; sewer, water, electric, gas, 

cable and other utility lines; or the clearing or excavation of property and 

related activities between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.; except that 

emergency operations necessary for the health, safety and welfare of the 



 

county and its residents may be conducted at any time. 

(9) The operation of equipment and machinery in any lawful business in the 

normal course of such business, or in planting, tending or harvesting 

activities in a zoning district where agriculture business operations are 

allowed, whether such agriculture operations are allowed of right or 

legally non-conforming. 

(10) Activities permitted by law for which a specific license or permit for a 

demonstrated public purpose has been granted by the county, state or 

federal government; including, but no limited to, noise generated by and 

necessary for the conduct of public festivals, operations or airplanes and 

operations of trains, railway stations, railway yards, and celebrations of 

recognized federal, state and local holidays. 

(11) Lawful and permitted sports activities. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia on this _____ day of 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 20__. 
 
 
 

THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON ADOPTION 



AYE: Bill Wampler, Joseph Puckett, Danny Brown, Shy Kennedy, Bob Keene and Jon Bowerbank 
NAY: None 

APPROVAL OF LITTER ORDINANCE 

Motion made by Shy Kennedy, second by Bill Wampler and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the following ordinance: 

LITTER DISPOSAL' 

§ 17.2-200. Authorization. 

This Ordinance is adopted and enacted pursuant to § 15.2-901; Article 2 Waste and Recycling, §§ 
15.2-927 et seq and§ 33.1-346 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of promoting 
the public safety, health, welfare, convenience and enjoyment of the general public, public travel, it is 
hereby declared to be in the public interest to regulate and restrict the disposal of trash, garbage refuse, 
litter or other unsightly matter on public highways, right-of-way, property adjacent to such highway or 
right-of-way, on private property, and solid waste facilities of the County, including but not limited to 
convenience centers, transfer stations and solitary landfills. 

Sec. 17.2-201. Title. 

This chapter shall be lmow and may be cited as the "Russell County Litter Control and Disposal 
Ordinance." 

Sec. 17.2-202. Defmitions. 

For purposes of this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning respectively 
ascribed to them by this section. 

Administrator means the Russell County Administrator or his or her duly authorized designee. 
Ashes means the residue resulting from the burning of wood, coal, coke or other combustible 
material. 
Board of Supervisors means the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 
Brush means bushes, briars, branches, leaves and similar material 
Brush, prunings and tree trimmings means trimmings from growing or dead trees or bushes no more 
than six 
inches in diameter. Any such trimming over four inches will not be accepted. These items will only 
be accepted at the transfer station, with the applicable tipping fee being paid. This shall not include 
roots or stumps that exceed four inches in diameter. 

Bulk waste means appliances, furniture, bedding material, automobile parts, mechanical equipment, 
mechanical parts, and carpet. 

Commercial establishment means a building or other structure and/or lot or tract of land used for or 
as a patt of the operation of a business enterprise, whether for profit or not, which is not used in 
whole as a residential unit. For the purposes of this ordinance, any structure which is used by the 
same owner or tenant for both residential and business purposes shall be deemed to be a commercial 
establishment, provided however, that if the Administrator determines that a mixed use structure 
generates a volume of solid waste that does not exceed the average amount of waste generated by a 
residence in Russell County, then such mixed use structure may be deemed to be a residential unit. 

Compacted waste means refuse or waste which has been reduced in volume by mechanical or 
hydraulic means and remains in this state of reduced volume until deposited at the transfer station. 

Containers mean any of the following: 

1 State law reference: Enabling act for regulation of disposal of trash see Code of Virginia§ 15.2-901; Article 2 Waste and 
Recycling,§§ 15.2-927 et seq and§ 33.1-346, 1950, as amended. 

215 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



216 

1. Residential Reusable Curbside Receptacle: a receptacle made of plastic, metal or 
fiberglass with a capacity not to exceed thirty-nine (39) gallons, a loaded weight of no more 
than thirty-five (35) pounds, having a tight fitting lid, and handles of adequate strength to 
allow for the container to be lifted. 

2. Non-Reusable: Plastic sacks designed for refuse disposal with sufficient wall sb_.ength to 
maintain physical integrity when lifted by the top; securely tied at the top for collection, with a 
capacity not to exceed thirty (39) gallons and a loaded weight not to exceed thirty-five (35) 
pounds. Non-reusable containers shall also include garbage compactor bags which meet the 
capacity and weight requirements for plastic sacks. Both reusable and non-reusable containers 
shall also be refei.red to as standard containers in this Ordinance. 

3. Bulle: Bins of metal construction capable of being emptied by mechanical equipment 
operated by solid waste disposal operators, the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste 
Management Authority, the County, towns located in the County and their contractors, 
generally referred to as dumpsters, which have a capacity of at least two and not more than 
eight cubic yards. Also included are large capacity roll on dumpsters. 

Curbside means that portion of the street or highway light of way adjacent to the paved or traveled 
portion of a primary or secondary roadway as established by the Virginia Department of 
Transportation. 

Contractor means the person with whom Russell County may contract for the collection of solid 
waste generated within Russell County, however nothing shall be deemed to require the County to 
contract for collection of all or part of its solid waste. In the event that the County shall contract for 
collection of all or 



part of its solid waste, then the term "Contractor11 shall be substituted for Russell County where 
appropriate in the Ordinance. 

Convenience Center means a collection point designated and operated by Russell County at which 
designated solid waste may be deposited. 

County the term 11 County11 shall be deemed to refer to Russell County unless the text of the 
Ordinance specificaUy refers to some other county. 

Disposal means the storage, collection, disposal or handling of refuse. 

Garbage means discarded materials composed of animal, vegetable or other organic matter. 

Litter means any solid waste that is disposed of as prohibited herein or allowed to be carelessly 
discarded or scattered about in an unsightly manner. Litter sha11 include, but not be limited to, 
garbage, trash, refuse and rubbish as referred to within this Ordinance. 

Litter bag means a bag or sack, of durable material, which is large enough to serve as a receptacle for 
litter inside a vehicle or watercraft which is similar in size and capacity to a state approved litter bag. 

Litter receptacle means a container with a capacity of not less than ten gallons constructed of such 
quality as to maintain the original shape when placed at an outdoor location; reasonably resistant to 
rust and corrosion; and placed for use as a depository for litter. Appliances (refrigerators, etc.) 
cannot be used as litter receptacles. 

Open dump means a site on which any solid waste is placed, discharged, deposited, injected, 
dumped, or spilled, so as to create a nuisance or so as to pose within the determination of the 
Administrator a substantial present or potential hazard to human health or the environment, including 
the pollution of air, land, surface water or ground water. A disposal facility operating without all 
permits required by the state and/or federal governments shall be considered an open dump. 

Operator means the person responsible for the overall operation and site management of a solid 
waste facility. 

Owner means the person, c01poration, or other legal entity in whom is vested the title to and interest 
in the land on which a solid waste management facility is located; the person, corporation or other 
legal entity in whom is vested title to and interest in the land upon which a residence, residential unit, 
multi-unit residential unit, commercial establishment or industry is located. 

Pennit means the written pennission issued by the state or federal government to own, operate, or 
construct a solid waste management facility; and any licenses issued pursuant to the provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

Person means an individual, corporation, partnership, association, a governmental body, a municipal 
corporation, or any other legal entity. 

Recycling means the process of separating a given waste material from the waste stream and 
processing it so that it is used again as a raw material for a product, which may or may not be similar 
to the original product. 

Refuse means discarded waste materials in a solid or semi-solid state, consisting of garbage, rubbish, 
or a combination thereof. 

Residential unit means a group of rooms located within a building and forming a single inhabitable 
unit with facilities which are used or are intended to be used for Jiving, sleeping, cooking and/or 
eating. A residential unit shall also include buildings containing multiple single-family dweUing 
units, however each unit shall be deemed to be a separate dwelling unit for billing purposes. The 
term 11residential unit11 shall also be deemed to include mobile home parks. 

Salvage means the authorized, controlled removal of waste materials from a solid waste management 
facility. I 

21.7 , 



218 

Scavenge means the unauthorized or uncontrolled removal of waste materials from a solid waste 
management facility. 

Sludge means any solid, semi-solid or liquid waste generated from a municipal, commercial or 
industrial wastewater treatment plant, water supply treatment plant, air pollution control facility, or 
other waste producing facility, but as used in this Ordinance the term does not include the treated 
effluent from a Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Solid Waste means any garbage, refuse, sludge, and other discarded material, including solid, liquid, 
semi-solid or contained gaseous material, resulting from residential, industrial, commercial, mining 
and agricultural operations and from community activities but does not include (i) solid or dissolved 
material in domestic sewage, (ii) solid or dissolved material in irrigation return flows or in industrial 
discharges which are sources subject to a pennit from the State Water Control Board, or (iii) source, 
special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Federal Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as 
amended. 

The solid waste herein defined also may refer to the fo11owing further defined types, i.e.: 

(1) Coal Mine Waste: Any commercial waste, construction/demolition waste, debris waste, inert 
waste, metals, garbage, mining equipment and/or machinery and any other waste generated 
prior, during, or after mining activities and which may be disposed of in compliance with this 
Ordinance and all other applicable state and federal laws and regulations. 

(2) Commercial Waste: All solid waste generated by establishments engaged in business 
operations other than manufacturing or construction. This category includes, but is not limited 
to, solid waste resulting from the operatio:q. of stores, markets, office buildings, restaurants, 
and shopping centers. 

(3) Construction/Demolition Waste: The waste building material, packaging and rubble, 
resulting from construction, remodeling, repair and demolition operations on pavement, 
houses, commercial buildings, and other structures. 

(4) Debris Waste: Waste resulting from land clearing operations, including but not limited to 
stumps, wood, brush, leaves, soil and road spoils. 

(5) Household Waste: Any waste material, including garbage, trash, and refuse normally 
produced or derived from single and/or multiple residential households and residences. 
Household wastes do not include sanitary waste in septic tanks (seepage). 

(6) Hazardous Waste: A solid waste or combination of solid waste which, because of its quantity, 
concentration or physical, chemical or infectious characteristics may: (a) cause or significantly 
contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase in serious irreversible, or incapacitating 
reversible illness; or (b) pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health, the 
Collection/Disposal System, or the environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, 
disposed of or otherwise managed. The foregoing definition is intended to include any waste 
now or hereafter designated as such by state or federal agencies with jurisdiction and authority 
to promulgate and enforce rules and regulations for the handling and disposal of hazardous and 
other waste. 

(7) Ignitable Waste: 

a. liquids having a flash point ofless than 140 degrees Fahrenheit (60degrees 
Centigrade). 

b. non-liquids liable to cause fires through friction, absorption of moisture, 
spontaneous chemical change or retained heat, or which are liable, when ignited, 
to bum so vigorously and persistently as to create a hazard. 

c. ignitable compressed gases, and/or oxidizers. 

8. Industrial Waste: Any solid waste generated by manufacturing or industrial process that is not 
a regulated hazardous waste. Such waste may include, but is not limited to, waste resulting 



from the following manufacturing processes: Electric power generation; fertilizer/agricultural 
chemicals; food and related products/byproducts; inorganic chemicals; iron and steel 
manufacturing; mining or oil and gas operations; leather and leather products; nonferrous 
metals manufacturing/foundries; organic chemicals; plastics and resins manufacturing; pulp 
and paper industry; rubber and miscellaneous plastic products; stone, glass, clay, and concrete 
products; textile manufacturing; transportation equipment; and water treatment. 

9. Inert Waste: Solid waste which is chemically and biologically stable from fiuiher degradation 
and considered to be non-reactive. Inert waste includes rubble, concrete, broken bricks, 
bricks, and blocks. 

10. Infectious Waste: Any solid waste if it is capable of producing an infectious disease in 
humans; is one of the controlled infectious wastes listed in any relevant section or sections of 
the fufectious Waste Management regulations of the Virginia Department of Environmental 
Quality as applicable at any given time, or is identified as infectious by a licensed physician or 
registered nurse. A waste shall be considered to be capable of producing an infectious disease 
if it has been, is or may have been contaminated by an organism that is or may be pathogenic 
to humans and if such organism has a significant probability of being present in sufficient 
quantities and with sufficient virulence to transmit disease. If the exact cause of a disease is 
unknown, but the health care professional in charge suspects the presence of a pathogen in the 
waste is the cause, such waste shall be managed as if the pathogen were identified and such 
waste shall be considered to be infectious waste. 

11. Institutional/Government Waste: All solid waste emanating from institutions such as, but not 
limited to, hospitals, nursing homes, orphanages, and public or private schools. It can include 
infectious waste from health care facilities and research facilities which has not been classified 
as a hazardous waste by the ViTginia Hazardous Waste Regulations or the United States 
EnviTonmental Protection Agency. Infectious waste which has been defined by state or federal 
law, rule or regulation as hazardous waste must be excluded from the waste stream. 

12. Putrescible Waste: Solid waste which contains organic material capable of being decomposed 
by microorganism, and which causes odors. 

13. Residential Waste: Household waste. 

14. Waste Oil: A spent petroleum product or lubricating fluid from vehicles or equipment. 

Solid waste management facility means any facility which engages in a planned program for 
effectively controlling the storage, collection, transportation, processing and reuse, conversion or 
disposal of solid waste in a safe, sanitary, aesthetically acceptable, environmentally sound and 
economic manner, in full compliance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations. The 
Russell County Transfer Station and Russell County Convenience Centers are Solid Waste 
Management Facilities. 

Trash means non-combustible discarded materials including, but not limited to, ashes, scrap metal, 
glass, brick, concrete or other construction materials. 

Uncompacted waste means refuse or waste which has not been reduced in volume by mechanical or 
hydraulic means, or if so, has not been maintained in this reduced volume state during the 
transportation to the landfill. 

Waste generator means the person who actually produces waste intended for disposal at the landfill. 

Waste management facility (See a1so Solid Waste Management Facility) means that area designated 
by the County Administrator for the collection of refuse intended for disposal at the Transfer Station 
or Collection Centers. 

White goods means refrigerators, stoves, clothes d1yers, waShing machines, water heaters, window 
air conditioners and other large appliances of similar size or character, and waste metal products. 

Yard waste means decomposable waste materials generated by yard and lawn care, and include 
leaves, grass trimmings, brush up to six inches in diameter and shrubs and tree trimmings arising 

219' 



220 

from general landscaping maintenance. This shall not include roots or stumps that exceed four 
inches in diameter. 

Where terms are not defined in this Ordinance and the context or practice requires definition they 
shall have the meaning specified in Chapter 14 of Title 10.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended 
and/or specified in other relevant statutes, and/or the Solid Waste Management Regulations of the Virginia 
Department of Environmental Quality, as now or hereafter adopted as are applicable. 

In case of conflict, the statutes and regulations applicable to the particu1ar requirement involved shaU 
prevail over those in this Ordinance. 

Sec. 17.2-203. General prohibitions. 

A. Moving Violations 

1. Littering Prohibited; Penalties 

It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, deposit, discard or otherwise dispose of litter in or upon 
any public or private property within Russell County, with or without permission of the owner, 
including, but not limited to any street, sidewalk, park, body of water, vacant or unoccupied lot, 
except in public litter receptacles, or in authorized private litter receptacles provided for public use, 
or in an area designated by the State Department of Health as a permitted disposal site. 

'When a violation of the provisions of this section has been observed by any person, and the matter 
dumped or disposed ofin the highway, right-of-way, property adjacent to such highway or right-of
way, or private property has been ejected from a motor vehicle, the owner or operator of such motor 
vehicle shall be presumed to be the person ejecting such trash, garbage, refuse or other unsightly 
matter; provided, however, that such presumption shall be rebuttable by competent evidence. 

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor as 
punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance. Any second or subsequent offense 
shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17 .2-206 of this Ordinance. 

2. Uncovered Vehicles, Escape of Load 

No vehicle shall be driven or moved on any highway unless such vehicle is constructed or loaded to 
prevent any of its load from dropping, sifting, leaking, or otherwise escaping there from; provided, 
however, that sand or any substance to increase traction or water or other substance may be applied 
on a roadway in the cleaning or maintaining of such roadway by the state or local government 
agency having such responsibilities. 

No person in an aircraft shall throw out, drop or deposit within the County any litter or other object. 

Any operator of a vehicle from which an object has escaped, that may cause an obstruction or 
damage a vehicle or endanger travelers on such public property, shall immediately cause the public 
property to be cleaned of all objects and shall be responsible for all of the costs of removal. 

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor as 
punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance. Any second or subsequent offense 
shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17 .2-206 of this Ordinance. 

B. Stationary Violations 

1. Areas Surrounding Commercial Establishments and Institutions 

It shall be the duty of each proprietor and each operator of any business, industry, or institution to 
keep the adjacent and surrounding area clear and free of litter. These areas include, but are not 
limited to, public and private sidewa1ks, roads, and alleys, grounds, parking lots, loading and 
unloading areas, and all vacant lots which are owned or leased by said establishment or institution. 

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a/ Class 2 
misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17 .2-206 of this Ordinance. 



2. Keeping Exterior of Residential and Commercial Property Clean 

It shall be the duty of each residential property owner and tenant to keep all exterior private property 
free of litter. The owner or occupant of any premises within the County shall be responsible for 
sanitary conditions of such premises, and it shall be unlawful for any person to place, deposit or 
allow to be placed or deposited on his premises any solid waste, except as designated by the terms of 
this Ordinance. It shall be the duty of each owner and tenant to keep all exterior property free of 
litter or waste, these areas shall include, but not be limited to: sidewalks, public roads, alleys and 
driveways; yards and grounds; fences; walls and property lines; drainages and vacant lots in both 
residential and commercial areas. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class 2 
misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17 .2-206 of this Ordinance. 

No person shall sweep into 9r deposit in any gutter, public road, street or water body within the 
County the accwnulation of litter from any building or lot or from any public or private sidewalk or 
driveway. This includes but is not limited to rubbish which includes grass clippings, hedge 
trimmings, leaves, pine needles, paper, plastic or other materials classified as litter or waste must be 
placed in an approved container and properly disposed. Persons owning or occupying property shall 
keep the sidewalk in front of their premises free of litter. Any violation of this subsection shall 
constitute a Class 3 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17 .2-206 of this Ordinance. 

Upon violation of this section, the County may proceed against either the tenant, owner or 
person in control or against all such persons. A warning citation as provided in Section 17.2-204(b) 
of this Ordinance shall be served on the owner or occupant of any premises upon which solid waste 
is found in violation of this section, giving the owner or occupant ten (10) days to remove such solid 
waste. If the owner or occupant does not comply with the terms of such citation, he or she shall be 
served a summons for violation of this section. 

This section shall not be deemed to prohibit the accwnulation of litter awaiting the next regularly 
scheduled refuse or garbage collection if such property is served by regularly scheduled garbage, 
refuse or litter collection. Such collection shall be deemed to be regular if such collection regularly 
occurs at least once per week or more frequently. 

3. Indiscriminate Dumping or Discarding of Litter and Solid Waste 

It shall be unlawful for any person to discard or dump along any street or road, on or off the right-of
way, any form of solid waste, rubbish, refuse, junk, motor vehicle or vehicle part, rubber tires, 
appliances, furniture, or any other material or equipment, on public or private property, with or 
without pennission of the property owner, except in County approved receptacles provided for public 
use for the deposit of said material, or except in an area designated by the State Department of Health 
as a permitted solid waste disposal site or collection facility. 

C. Cleanup oflmproperly Disposed Litter or Solid Waste 

1. Cleanup of Premises by County Authorization 

The owners of property within the County shall, within fourteen (14) days of receiving written notice 
from the County, remove from the property any and all trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other 
substances which might endanger the health or safety ofother residents of the County. 

If, after fourteen (14) days ofreceiving the notice, the owners of such property have failed to take 
action as directed by the notice, the County may have such trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other 
substances which might endanger the health or safety of other residents of the County, removed by 
its own agents or employees, in which event the cost or expense thereof shall be chargeable to and 
paid by the owners of such property and may be collected by the County as taxes are collected. 

Execution of the notice to remove litter shall be in writing and shall be in the form set forth in 
Section 17.2-204(b) of this ordinance and served by personal service, posted service or sent by 
registered mail. 

221 



222 

Every charge authorized by this section with which the owner of any such property shall have 
been assessed and which remains unpaid shall constitute a lien against such property ranking on a 
parity with liens for unpaid local taxes and enforceable in the same manner as provided in Articles 3 
(§ 58.1-3940 et seq.) and 4 (§ 58.1-3965 et seq.) of Chapter 39 of Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia, 
1950, as amended. The County may waive such liens in order to facilitate the sale of the property. 
Such liens may be waived only as to a purchaser who is unrelated by blood or marriage to the owner 
and who has no business association with the owner. All such liens shall remain a personal 
obligation of the owner of the property at the time the liens were imposed. 

A violation of this section shall be subject to a civil penalty, not to exceed $50.00 for the first 
violation, or violations arising from the same set of operative facts. The civil penalty for subsequent 
violations not arising from the same set of operative facts within 12 months of the first violation sha11 
not exceed $200.00. Each business day during which the same violation is found to have existed 
shall constitute a separate offense. In no event shall a series of specified violation arising from the 
same set of operative facts result in civil penalties that exceed a total of $3,000.00 in a 12-month 
period.2 

In the event three civil penalties have previously been imposed on the same defendant for the same 
or similar violation, not arising from the same set of operative facts, within a 24-month period a 
violation of this subsection shall be a Class 3 misdemeanor.3 

D. Litter Receptacles 

1. Use of Receptacles 

a. It shall be unlawful to deposit any item or items except litter in any receptacle placed for 
public use as a depository for litter. Any item or items, including litter, which are 
expressly prohibited from being placed in said receptacle by a sign or other writing 
located on or around the receptacle, shall not be placed or deposited in said receptacle. 

b. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class 2 misdemeanor. A second or 
subsequent offense shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor. 

2. Providing Adequate Litter Receptacles for Businesses 

It shall be the duty of any person owning or operating any commercial establishment to 
provide receptacles adequate to contain the litter generated at said establishment. The penalty 
established for violation of this subsection shall be twenty-five ($25.00) dollars for each day of 
violation. The offender shall receive a summons from the enforcement officer for any violation 
of this subsection. The offender may pay the fine in lieu of appearing in court on any first 
offense. 

3. Providing Adequate Litter Receptacles for Residences 

a. All household solid waste shall be contained in receptacles or containers which conform 
to standards established by the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

b. It shall be unlawful for any person to use an old appliance or other container deemed 
unacceptable by the County for trash collection. 

c. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class 3 misdemeanor. 

E. Improper Disposal of Waste 

1. Depositing Improper Waste in Receptacles or Facilities 

a. It shall be unlawful to improperly dispose of any solid waste as defined in this 
Ordinance at a facility operated for or in a receptacle placed for public or private use. 

2 See §15.2-90 l(C) for enabling act authorizing civil penalty by ordinance. 

3 See §15.2-901(D) for enabling act authorizing Class 3 misdemeanor when three civil penalties have occurred. 



Improper disposal shall mean and include the depositing in such facility of solid waste 
which is not accepted or authorized for disposal by such facility. The types of waste not 
accepted at any such facility shall be displayed at the entrance of such facility or on the 
receptacle. 

F. Enforcement of Litter Laws; Prosecution; Presumption 

1. Enforcement 

a. Prosecution for a violation of any provision of this act may be initiated by any law 
enforcement officer, litter control officer, or private citizen. 

2. Authorization of County Litter Control Office to Bring Civil Action. 

Whereas Section I0.1-1418.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended authorizes the 
County to bring a civil action against any person who improperly disposes of solid waste on 
the property of the County, with6ut the County's permission. Whenever a court of competent 
jurisdiction finds that a person has improperly disposed of solid waste upon the County's 
property, without the County1s permission, the court shall assess a civil penalty of up to five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00) against such defendant, along with costs and reasonable 
attorney's fees. Any civil penalty assessed pursuant to this subsection shall be paid into the 
Russell County treasury. 

3. Assign-A-Highway Roadside and Illegal Dump Cleanup 

For Cleanup of roadside litter and identified illegal dumps within the County, it is hereby 
established a program pursuant to Section 53.1-129 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, and the Sheriff of the County and any of his deputies and any Special Conservator 
of the Peace/Litter Officer who has been approved by a court of competent jurisdiction shall 
be permitted to utilize probationers or remove inmates from the County or Regional Jail under 
their supervision to work in this program providing that any such inmate has been specifically 
approved to be pennitted to participate in this program by the Sheriff and by the Court. 
·Probationers will be assigned to two-mile designated sections of highway, cleaned up every 
two weeks for the duration of their assignment to this program. Inmates shall be utilized only 
for the cleanup of illegal dumps identified by the County Litter Control Department. During 
the cleanup of illegal dumps, the Special Conservator of the Peace/Litter Control Officer or the 
Sheriff or his deputies will be present during this volunteer work. 

Sec. 17.2-204. Removal, disposal of trash and garbage. 

(a) The owners of property in the county shall not accumulate thereon and shall remove there 
from any and all trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances which might endanger the 
health or safety of other residents of the county. 

(b) Notice to property owner. 

(1) The board of supervisors may, when it deems it necessary, give written notice to the 
owner of any property in the county, and to the person primarily responsible for such property, 
if different from the owner and if know, stating the facts that constitute a violation of 
subsection (a) of this section and directing such person or persons to take such action as may 
be necessary to rectify the conditions within 14 days from the date of the notice. 
(2) The notice required by the section shall be by certified or registered mail to the last 
known address, or by hand delivery by the sheriff of the county, his deputy, the county 
sanitation officer or the designee of the county administrator, to the owner of the property and 
to 'the person primarily responsible for such property, if different from the owner and if 
lmown, The notice shall be substantially in the following fonn: 

NOTICE TO REMOVE TRASH, GARBAGE, REFUSE, LITTER 

223 



224 

AND OTHER SUBSTANCES 

TO: __________ ~ AT: __________ _ 
Responsible Party 

Address of property 

Tax Map Number 

Pursuant to Code of Virginia, § 15.2-902 and § 15.2-802 of the Ordinances of Russell County, 
Virginia, you are hereby notified to remove, within 14 days after the date of this notice, all trash, garbage, 
refuse, litter and other substances that endanger the health or safety of other residents of the county, in 
particular (describe the conditions). Upon you failure to remove the same, the county's agents or employees 
may remove such trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances that endanger the health or safety of 
other residents of the county, and the cost and expenses of such removal shall be chargeable to and paid by 
the owner of such property and may be collected by the county as taxes and levies are collected and shall 
constitute a lien on the property. 

(c) If the property is not cleaned up after receiving the notice required in subsection (b) of this 
section, the board of supervisors may have such trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other like 
substances that might endanger the health of other residents of the county removed by the 
county's own agents or employees, in which event the cost and expenses thereof shall be 
chargeable to and paid by the owners of such property and may be collected by the county as 
taxes and levies are collected. 

( d) Every charge authorized by this section with which the owner and lien holder of any such 
property shall have been assessed and which remains unpaid shall constitute a lien against 
such property ranking on a parity with lien for unpaid local taxes and enforceable in the same 
manner as provided in Code of Virginia,§§ 58.1-3940 et seq. and 58.1-3965 et seq. 

( e) Trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other debris shall be disposed of in personally owned or 
privately owned receptacles that are provided for such use and for the use of the persons 
disposing such matter or in authorized facilities provided for such purpose, and in no other 
manner not authorized by law. 

§ 17.2-205. Dumping trash on highway, right-of-way or private property. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to dump or otherwise dispose of trash, garbage, refuse, 
litter or other unsightly matter, on public property, including a public highway, right-of-way, 
property adjacent to such highway or right-of-way, or on private property without the written 
consent of the owner thereof or his agent. 

(b) When any person is anested for a violation of this section, and the matter alleged to have been 
illegally dumped or disposed of has been ejected from a motor vehicle or transported to the 
disposal site in a motor vehicle, the arresting officer may comply with the provisions of Code 
of Virginia, § 46.2-936, in making such arrest. 

(c) When a violation of the provisions of this section has been observed by any person, and the 
matter illegally dumped or disposed of has been ejected or removed from a motor vehicle, the 
owner or operator of such motor vehicle shall be presumed to be the person ejecting or 
disl)osing of such matter. However, such presumption shall be rebuttable by competent 
evidence. 

( d) Any person who violates this section shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a class 1 
misdemeanor punishable by confinement in jail for not more than 12 months and a fine of not 
less than $250.00 nor more than $2,500.00, either or both. 



( e) The provisions of this section shall not apply to the lawful disposal of such matter in landfills, 
the county transfer station or county convenience stations. 

(f) The Commonwealth Attorney of Russell County, Virginia or his designee shall be responsible 
for all prosecutions under this section. 

§ 17.2-206. Penalties. 

The authorized punishments for a conviction of a misdemeanor are: 
(a) For Class 1 misdemeanors, confinement in jail for not more than twelve months and a fine of 

not more than $2,500, either or both. 

(b) For Class 2 misdemeanors, confinement in jail for not more than six months and fine of not 
more than $1,000, either or both. 

(c) For Class 3 misdemeanors, a fine not more than $500. 

(d} For Class 4 misdemeanors, a fine of not more than $250. 

§ 17.2-207. Effective date of ordinance. 

This ordinance shall be effective on the !st day of January, 2011. The County Administrator is 
directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance in the Offices of the Clerk of the General District Conrt of 
Russell County and the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Russell County. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Shy Kennedy, Bill Wampler, Danny Brown, Bob Keene, Jon Bowerbank and Joseph Puckett 
NAY: None 

PUBLIC HEARING- RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET APPROPRIATION 

Pursuant to having advertised in a local newspaper a Public Hearing was held concerning the 
intention of the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia to propose for passage a resolution 
amending the Russell County School Budget for 2010/2011 Fiscal Year. The Chairman called the Public 
Hearing to order. The County Administrator conducted the Public Hearing. The floor was open to receive 
public comments. No comments being received the Chainnan closed the Public Hearing. 

Motion made by Bill Wampler, second by Joseph Puckett and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to authorize the Russell County School Board's amendment of their 2010-2011 Fiscal Year 
Budget for expenditures in the amount of$1,114,082.00 received from Federal Education Jobs Fund. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Bill Wampler, Joseph Puckett, Danny Brown, Bob Keene, Shy Kennedy and Jon Bowerbank 
NAY: None 

JESS POWERS -DISCUSSION OF SYNTHETIC MARIJUANA 

Motion made by Joseph Puckett, second by Bill Wampler and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to requests businesses to pull the synthetic marijuana from their shelves, to send a request to 
Senator Phillip Puckett to introduce legislation in the General Assembly and to hold a Public Hearing on 
Monday, January 3, 2011 at the Russell County Governmental Center in Lebanon, Virginia beginning at 
6:15 P. M. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Joseph Puckett, Bill Wampler, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Jon Bowerbank and Shy Kennedy 
NAY: None 

RECOGNITION PLAQUE-DR. HUGHES MELTON 

225 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



226 

RECOGNITION PLAQUE -DR HUGHES MELTON 

Motion made by Jon Bowerbank, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to present the following plaque to Dr. Hughes Melton: 

WHEREAS, Dr. Hughes Melton has been awarded the American Academy of Family Physicians 
2011 Family Physician of the Year; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Hughes Melton played a founding role in the establishment of C-Health, PC and 
the development of substance abuse recovery programs for Russell County and its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Hughes Melton has exhibited leadership and dedication in his efforts to establish a 
Wellness Center/Russell County YMCA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors to 
recognize the Achievements and Continued Efforts of Dr. Hughes Melton. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Jon Bowerbank, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Bill Wampler, Shy Kennedy and Joseph Puckett 
NAY: None 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comment was received from Steve Banner regarding business purchasing metals. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 1 AND 17, 2010 

Motion made by Jon Bowerbank, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the minutes of November 1 and 17, 2010 and dispense with the reading thereof. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Jon Bowerbank, Bob Keene, Bill Wampler, Danny Brown, Joseph Puckett and Shy Kennedy 
NAY: None 

APPROVAL OF INVOICES - GENERAL COUNTY, SWVaASAP, WIB 
AND RUSSELL COUNTY HOUSING FUND 

Motion made by Bill Wampler, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve General County invoices in the amount of$I,012, 166.93, including SWV aASP and 
WJB, also Russell County Housing Fund in the amount of$6,467.29. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Bill Wampler, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Shy Kennedy, Joseph Puckett and Jon Bowerbank 
NAY: None 

APPOINTMENT- CUMBERLAND MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD 

Motion made by Joseph Puckett, second by Jon Bowerbank and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to appoint Dr. Charles King for a three (3) year term, said term from January 1, 2011 to 
January 1, 2014. 

The vote was: 

AYE: Joseph Puckett, Jon Bowerbank, Danny Brown, Bill Wampler, Shy Kennedy and Bob Keene 
NAY: None 



APPOINTMENTS TO DRILL COMMUNITY CENTER 

Motion made by Bob Keene, second by Bill Wampler and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to appoint the following to the Drill Community Center for a two (2) year term, said term 
beginning on January I, 2011 and ending on January 1, 2013: Charlene Blankenship, Rachel Helton, Ruth 
Hess, Doug Lester, David Ball, Harold Dean Thomas and Betty Sue Hess. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Bob Keene, Bill Wampler, Danny Brown, Joseph Puckett, Shy Kennedy and Jon Bowerbank 
NAY: None 

APPOINTMENTS TO FINNEY COMMUNITY CENTER 

Motion made by Bob Keene, second by Bill Wampler and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to appoint the following to the Finney Community Center for a two (2) year term, said term 
beginning on January 1, 2011 and ending on January I, 2013: Mary Ann Ray and Beverly Honaker_ 

The vote was: 

AYE: Bob Keene, Bill Wampler, Danny Brown, Joseph Puckett, Shy Kennedy and Jon Bowerbank 
NAY: None 

ABSTRACT OF VOTES 

Motion made by Jon Bowerbank, second by Shy Kennedy and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the abstract of votes as follows: H. Morgan Griffith- 3941; Rick Boucher-4679 
and Jeremiah Heaton - 158, Member Board of Supervisors District 5 - Harry Monk - 921 and R. Joseph 
Puckett- 1247. Amendment #1 - YES - 5799; NO - 1484, Amendment #2 - YES - 6291; NO - 1104, 
Amendment#3- YES-3605; NO-3416. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Jon Bowerbank, Shy Kennedy, Bob Keene, Bill Wampler, Danny Brown and Joseph Puckett 
NAY: None 

DEEDS OF RELEASE FOR MOREFIELD BOTTOM SEWER PROJECT 

Motion made by Shy Kennedy, second by Bill Wampler and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve payment to Harry Sutherland in the amount of $6,000.00 and Margaret Moore in 
the amount of $4,200.00 for deeds of release for Morefield Bottom Sewer Project; payment to be made 
payable to Castlewood Water & Sewage Authority. 

The vote was: 

AYE: Shy Kennedy, Bill Wampler, Jon Bowerbank, Danny Brown, Joseph Puckett and Bob Keene 
NAY: None 

REVENUE SHARING PROJECTS 

Motion made by Jon Bowerbank, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve putting the Revenue Sharing Projects in place and authorize the County 
Adminish·ator to sign the proper paperwork. 

The vote was: 

AYE: Jon Bowerbank, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Bill Wampler, Shy Kennedy and Joseph Puckett 
NAY: None 

z z / ' 



228 

APPROVAL OF VEHICLES FOR SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 

Motion made by Jon Bowerbank, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve the purchase of six (6) vehicles for the Russell County Sheriff's Department, 
monies to come from Sheriffs Department County Budget and vehicle insurance reimbursement. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Jon Bowerbank:, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Joseph Puckett, Bill Wampler and Shy Kennedy 
NAY: None 

PAYROLL AUTHORIZATION FOR DECEMBER 21. 2010 

Motion made by Jon Bowerbank, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to authorize payroll for county employees on December 21, 2010. 

The vote was; 

AYE: Jon Bowerbank, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Bill Wampler, Shy Kennedy and Joseph Puckett 
NAY: None 

CHRISTMAS DAY PAY FOR PART TIME WORIIBRS 

Motion made by Bill Wampler, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve Christmas Day ( one day) pay for part time county employees. 

The vote was: 

AYE: Bill Wampler, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Joseph Puckett, Shy Kennedy and Jon Bowerbank 
NAY: None 

CLOSED SESSION 

Motion made by Bill Wampler, second by Bob Keene and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to go into closed session pursuant to Virginia Code §2.2-3711 (A) (1) for consideration of 
candidates for employment and Virginia Code §2.2-3711 (A) (7) for consultation with legal counsel 
concerning contracts. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Bill Wampler, Bob Keene, Danny Brown, Shy Kennedy, Jon Bowerbank and Joseph Puckett 
NAY: None 

The Chairman called the meeting back into regular session and requested the "Certification Roll Call 
Vote1

' after reconvening in Public Session. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Jon Bowerbank -A YE 
Joseph Puckett - A YE 
Shy Kennedy- AYE 
Danny Brown - AYE 
Bob Keene - A YE 
Bill Wampler - A YE 

APPROVAL OF SOLID WASTE CONTRACT 

Motion made by Joseph Puckett, second by Bill Wampler and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve a five (5) year contact with Southwest Disposal for the Solid Waste Contract. 

I 



The vote was: 

AYE: Joseph Puckett, Bill Wampler, Danny Brown, Bob Keene and Shy Kennedy 
NAY: None 
Jon Bowerbank recused himself from voting because of an appearance of an impropriety since he is 

engaged in a similar type of business. 

LEACHATE HAUL CONTRACT 

Motion made by Joseph Puckett, second by Bill Wampler and duly approved by the Board of 
Supervisors to approve a two (2) year contract with Tri-County driving for the Leachate Haul Contract. 

The vote was: 

A YE: Joseph Puckett, Bill Wampler, Danny Brown, Bob Keene and Shy Kennedy 
NAY: None 
Jon Bowerbank rec used himself from voting because of an appearance of an impropriety since he is 

engaged in a similar type of business. 

Motion made by Shy Kennedy, second by Bob Keene and duly approved to adjourn. 

Clerk Chairman 

229 



 

 
1 

 

Russell County                                                                                        
Litter Control and                                                                                                     

Disposal Ordinance 

§ 17.2-200. Authorization. 

 This Ordinance is adopted and enacted pursuant to § 15.2-901; Article 2 Waste 
and Recycling, §§ 15.2-927 et seq and § 33.1-346 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, for the purpose of promoting the public safety, health, welfare, convenience 
and enjoyment of the general public, public travel, it is hereby declared to be in the 
public interest to regulate and restrict the disposal of trash, garbage refuse, litter or 
other unsightly matter on public highways, right-of-way, property adjacent to such 
highway or right-of-way, on private property, and solid waste facilities of the County, 
including but not limited to convenience centers, transfer stations and solitary landfills. 

Sec. 17.2-201. Title. 

 This chapter shall be know and may be cited as the “Russell County Litter 
Control and Disposal Ordinance.” 

Sec. 17.2-202. Definitions. 

 For purposes of this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the 
meaning respectively ascribed by this section. 

Administrator means the Russell County Administrator or his or her duly 
authorized designee. 

Ashes means the residue resulting from the burning of wood, coal, coke or other 
combustible material. 

Board of Supervisors means the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

Brush means bushes, briars, branches, leaves and similar material. 

Brush, pruning and tree trimmings means trimmings from growing or dead trees or 
bushes no more than six inches in diameter. Any such trimmings over four 
inches will not be accepted. These items will only be accepted at the transfer 



 

 
2 

 

station, with the applicable tipping fee being paid. This shall not include roots or 
stumps that exceed four inches in diameter.  

Bulk waste means appliances, furniture, bedding material, automobile parts, 
mechanical equipment, mechanical parts, and carpet.  

Commercials establishment means a building or other structure and/or lot or tract 
of land used for or as a part of the operation of a business enterprise, whether for 
profit or not, which is not used in whole as a residential unit. For the purposes of 
this ordinance, any structure which is used by the same owner or tenant for both 
residential and business purposes shall be deemed to be a commercial 
establishment, provided however, that if the Administrator determines that a 
mixed use structure generates a volume of solid waste that does not exceed the 
average amount of waste generated by a residence in Russell County, then such 
mixed use structure may be deemed to be a residential unit.  

Compacted waste means refuse or waste which has been reduced in volume by 
mechanical or hydraulic means and remains in this state of reduced volume until 
deposited at the transfer station. 

Containers mean any of the following: 

1. Residential Reusable Curbside Receptacle: a receptacle made of plastic, metal 
or fiberglass with a capacity not to exceed thirty-nine (39) gallons, a loaded 
weight of no more than thirty-five (35) pounds, having a tight fitting lid, and 
handles of adequate strength to allow for the container to be lifted.  

2. Non-Reusable: Plastic sacks designed for refuse disposal with sufficient wall 
strength to maintain physical integrity when lifted by the top; securely tied at 
the top for collection, with a capacity not to exceed thirty (30) gallons and a 
loaded weight not to exceed thirty-five (35) pounds. Non-reusable containers 
shall also include garbage compactor bags which meet the capacity and 
weight requirements for plastic sacks. Both reusable and non-reusable 
containers shall also be referred to as standard containers in this Ordinance.  

3. Bulk: Bins of metal construction capable of being emptied by mechanical 
equipment operated by solid waste disposal operators, the Cumberland 
Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority, the County, towns located in 
the County and their contractors, generally referred to as dumpsters, which 



 

 
3 

 

have a capacity of at least two and not more than eight cubic yards. Also 
included are large capacity roll on dumpsters. 

Curbside means that portion of the street or highway right of way adjacent to the paced 
or traveled portion of a primary or secondary roadway as established by the Virginia 
Department of Transportation. 

Contractor means the person with whom Russell County may contract for the collection 
of solid waste generated within Russell County, however nothing shall be deemed to 
require the County to contract for collection of all or part of its solid waste. In the event 
that the County shall contract for collection of all or part of its solid waste, then the term 
“Contractor” shall be substituted for Russell County where appropriate in the 
Ordinance.  

Convenience Center means a collection point designated and operate by Russell County 
at which designated solid waste may be deposited.  

County the term “County” shall be deemed to refer to Russell County unless the text of 
the Ordinance specifically refers to some other county. 

Disposal means the storage, collection, disposal or handling of refuse. 

Garbage means discarded materials composed of animal, vegetable or other organic 
matter. 

Litter means any solid waste that is disposed of as prohibited herein or allowed to be 
carelessly discarded or scattered about in unsightly matter. Litter shale include, but not 
be limited to, garbage, trash, refuse and rubbish as referred to within the Ordinance. 

Litter bag means a bag or sack, of durable material, which is large enough to serve as a 
receptacle for litter inside a vehicle or watercraft which is similar in size and capacity to 
a state approved litter bag.  

Litter receptacle means a container with a capacity of not less than ten gallons 
constructed of such quality as to maintain the original shape when placed at an outdoor 
location; reasonably resistant to rust and corrosion; and placed for use as a depository 
for litter. Appliances (refrigerators, etc.) cannot be used as litter receptacles.  

Open dump means a site on which any solid waste is placed, discharged, deposited, 
injected, dumped, or spilled, so as to create a nuisance or so as to pose within the 



 

 
4 

 

determination of the Administrator for substantial present or potential hazard to 
human health or the environment, including the pollution of air, land, surface water or 
ground water. A disposal facility operation without all permits required by the state 
and/or federal governments shall be considered an open dump. 

Operator means the person responsible for the overall operation and site management of 
a solid waste facility.  

Owner means the person, corporation, or other legal entity in whom is vested the title to 
and interest in the land on which a solid waste management facility is located; the 
person, corporation or other legal entity in whom is vested title to and interest in the 
land upon which a residence, residential unit, multi-unit residential unit, commercial 
establishment or industry is located.  

Permit means the written permission issued by the state or federal government to own, 
operate, or construct a solid waste management facility; and any licenses issued 
pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance.  

Person means an individual, corporation, partnership, association, a governmental 
body, a municipal corporation, or any other legal entity.  

Recycling means the process of separating a given waste material from the waste stream 
and processing it so that it is used again as a raw material for a product, which may or 
may not be similar to the original thereof.  

Refuse means discarded waste materials in a solid or semi-solid state, consisting of 
garbage, rubbish, or a combination thereof.  

Residential unit means a group of rooms located within a building and forming in single 
inhabitable unit with facilities which are used or are intended to be used for living, 
sleeping, cooing and/or eating. A residential unit shall also include buildings containing 
multiple single-family dwelling units, however each unit shall be deemed to be a 
separate dwelling unit for billing purposes. The term “residential unit “shall also be 
deemed to include mobile home parks.  

Salvage means the authorized, controlled removal of waste materials from a solid waste 
management facility.  



 

 
5 

 

Scavenge means the unauthorized or uncontrolled removal of waste materials from a 
solid waste management facility.  

Sludge means any solid, semi-solid or liquid waste generated from the a municipal, 
commercial or industrial wastewater treatment plant, air pollution control facility, or 
other waste producing facility, but as used in this Ordinance the term does not include 
the treated effluent from a Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Solid Waste means any garbage, refuse, sludge, or other discarded material, including 
solid, liquid, semi-solid or contained gaseous material, resulting from residential, 
industrial, commercial, mining or agricultural operations and from community 
activities but does not include (i) solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage, (ii) 
solid or dissolved material in irrigation return flows or in industrial discharges which 
are sources subject to a permit from the State Water Control Board, or (iii) source, 
special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Federal Atomic Energy Act of 
1954, as amended. 

The solid waste herein defined also may refer to the following further defined types, 
i.e.: 

1. Coal Mine Waste: Any commercial waste, construction/ demolition waste, debris 
waste, inert waste, metals, garbage, mining equipment and/or machinery and 
any other waste generated prior, during, or after mining activities and which 
may be disposed of in compliance with this Ordinance and all other applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations.  

2. Commercial Waste: All solid waste generated by establishments engaged in 
business operations other than manufacturing or construction. This category 
includes, but is not limited to, solid waste resulting from the operation of stores, 
markets, office buildings, restaurants, and shopping centers.  

3. Construction/Demolition Waste: The waste building material, packaging and 
rubble, resulting from construction, remodeling, repair and demolition 
operations on pavement, houses, commercial buildings, and other structures, 

4. Debris Waste: Waste resulting from land clearing operations, including but not 
limited to stumps, wood, brush, leaves, soil and road spoils. 

5. Household Waste: Any waste material, including garbage, trash, and refuse 
normally produced or derived from single and/or multiple residential 



 

 
6 

 

households and residences. Household wastes do not include sanitary waste in 
septic tanks (septage). 

6. Hazardous Waste: A solid waste or combination of solid waste which, because of 
its quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infections characteristics may: 
(a) cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase in 
serious irreversible, or incapacitating reversible illness; or (b) pose a substantial 
present or potential hazard to human health, the Collection/Disposal System, or 
the environment from improperly treated, stores, transported, disposed of or 
otherwise managed. The foregoing definition is intended to include any waste 
now or hereafter designated as such by state or federal agencies with jurisdiction 
and authority to promulgate and enforce rules and regulations for the handling 
and disposal of hazardous and other waste.  

7. Ignitable Waste: 
a. Liquids having a flash point of less than 140 degrees Fahrenheit (60 

degrees Centigrade). 
b. non-liquids liable to cause fires through friction, absorption of moisture, 

spontaneous chemical change or retained heat, or which are liable, when 
ignited, to burn so vigorously and persistently as to create a hazard. 

c. Ignitable compressed gases’, and/or oxidizers. 
8. Industrial Waste: Any solid waste generated by manufacturing or industrial 

process that is not a regulated hazardous waste. Such waste may include, but is 
not limited to, waste resulting from the following manufacturing processes: 
Electric power generation; fertilizer/agricultural chemicals; food and related 
products/byproducts; inorganic chemicals; iron and steel manufacturing; mining 
or oil and gas operations; leather and leather products; nonferrous metals 
manufacturing/foundries; organic chemicals; plastics and resins manufacturing; 
pulp and paper industry; rubber and miscellaneous plastic products; stone, glass, 
clay, and concrete products; textile manufacturing; transportation equipment; 
and water treatment.  

9. Inert Waste: Solid waste which is chemically and biologically stable from further 
degradation and considered to be non-reactive. Inert waste includes rubble, 
concrete, broken bricks, bricks, and blocks. 

10. Infectious Waste: Any solid waste if it is capable of producing an infectious 
disease in humans; is one of the controlled infectious wastes listed in any 
relevant section or sections of the Infectious Waste Management regulations of 



 

 
7 

 

the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality as applicable at any given 
time, or is identified as infectious by a licensed physician or registered nurse. A 
waste shall be considered to be capable of producing an infectious disease if it 
has been, is or may have been contaminated by an organism that is or may be 
pathogenic to humans and if such organism has a significant probability of being 
present in sufficient quantities and with sufficient virulence to transmit disease. 
If the exact cause of a disease is unknown, but the health care professional in 
charge suspects the presence of a pathogen in the waste is the case, such waste 
shall be managed as if the pathogen were identified and such waste shall be 
considered to be infectious waste. 

11. Institutional/Government Waste: All solid waste emanating from institutions such 
as, but not limited to, hospitals, nursing homes, orphanages, and public or 
private schools. It can include infectious waste from health care facilities and 
research facilities which has not been classified as a hazardous waste by the 
Virginia Hazardous Waste Regulations or the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. Infectious waste which has been defined by state and federal 
law, rule or regulation as hazardous waste must be excluded from the waste 
stream.  

12. Putrescible Waste: Solid waste which contains organic material capable of being 
decomposed by microorganism, and which causes odors.  

13. Residential Waste: Household waste.  
14. Waste Oil: A spent petroleum product or lubricating fluid from vehicles or 

equipment.  

Solid waste management facility means any facility which engages in a planned program 
for effectively controlling the storage, collection, transportation, processing and reuse, 
conversion or disposal of solid waste in a safe, sanitary, aesthetically acceptable, 
environmentally sound and economic manner, in full compliance with all applicable 
local, state and federal regulations. The Russell County Transfer Station and Russell 
County Convenience Centers are Solid Waste Management Facilities.  

Trash means non-combustible discarded materials including, but not limited to, ashes, 
scrap metal, glass, brick, concrete or other construction materials.  

Uncompacted waste means refuse or waste which has not been reduced in volume by 
mechanical or hydraulic means, or if so, has not been maintained in this reduced 
volume state during the transportation to the landfill. 



 

 
8 

 

Waste generator means the person who actually produces waste intended for disposal at 
the landfill. 

Waste management facility (See also Solid Waste Management Facility) means that area 
designated by the County Administrator for the collection of refuse intended for 
disposal at the Transfer Station or Collection Centers. 

White goods means refrigerators, stoves, clothes dryers, washing machines, water 
heaters, window air conditioners and other large appliances of similar size or character, 
and waste metal products.  

Yard waste means decomposable waste materials generated by yard and lawn care, and 
include leaves, grass trimmings, brush up to six inches in diameter and shrubs and tree 
trimmings arising from general landscaping maintenance. This shall not include roots 
or stumps that exceed four inches in diameter.  

 Where terms are not defined in this Ordinance and the context or practice 
requires definition they shall have the meaning specified in Chapter 14 of Title 10.1 of 
the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended and/or specified in other relevant statutes, 
and/or the Solid Waste Management Regulations of the Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality, as now or hereafter adopted as are applicable. 

 In case of conflict, the statutes and regulations applicable to the particular 
requirement involved shall prevail over those in this Ordinance.  

Sec. 17.2-203. General prohibitions.  

A. Moving Violations 
1. Littering Prohibited: Penalties 

It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, deposit, discard or otherwise 
dispose of litter in or upon any public or private property within Russell County, 
with or without permission of the owner, including, but not limited to any street, 
sidewalk, park, body of water, vacant or unoccupied lot, except in public litter 
receptacles, or in authorized private litter receptacles provided for public use, or in 
an area designated by the State Department of Health as a permitted disposal site.  

When a violation of the provisions of this section has been observed by any 
person, and the matter dumped or disposed of in the highway, right-of-way, 



 

 
9 

 

property adjacent to such highway or right-of-way, or private property has been 
ejected from a motor vehicle, the owner or operator of such motor vehicle shall be 
presumed to be the person ejecting such trash, garbage, refuse or other unsightly 
matter; provided, however, that such presumption shall be rebuttable by competent 
evidence.  

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a Class 
2 misdemeanor as punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance. Any 
second or subsequent offense shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor punishable as 
provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance. 

2. Uncovered Vehicles, Escape of Load 
No vehicle shall be driven or moved on any highway unless such vehicle is 
constructed or loaded to prevent any of its load from dropping, sifting, 
leaking, or otherwise escaping therefrom; provided, however, that sand or 
any substance to increase traction or water or other substance may be applied 
on a roadway in the cleaning or maintaining of such roadway by the state or 
local government agency having such responsibilities.  
 No person in an aircraft shall throw out, drop or deposit within the 
County any litter or other object.  
 Any operator of a vehicle from which an object has escaped, that may 
cause an obstruction or damage a vehicle or endanger travelers on such 
public property, shall immediately cause the public property to be cleaned of 
all objects and shall be responsible for all the costs of removal. 
 Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a 
Class 2 misdemeanor as punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this 
Ordinance.  Any second or subsequent offense shall constitute a Class 1 
misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this Ordinance.  

B. Stationary Violations 
1. Areas Surrounding Commercial Establishments and Institutions 

It shall be the duty of each proprietor and each operator of any business, 
industry, or institution to keep the adjacent and surrounding area clear and free 
of litter. These areas include, but are not limited to, public and private sidewalks, 
roads, and alleys, grounds, parking lots, loading and unloading areas, and all 
vacant lots which are owned or leased by said establishment or institution. 



 

 
10 

 

Any person found guilty of a violation of this section shall be guilty of a 
Class 2 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this 
Ordinance. 

2. Keeping Exterior of Residential and Commercial Property Clean 

It shall be the duty of each residential property owner and tenant to keep all 
exterior private property free of litter. The owner of occupant of any premises 
within the County shall be responsible for sanitary conditions of such 
premises, and it shall be unlawful for any person to place, deposit or allow to 
be placed or deposited on his premises any solid waste, except as designated 
by the terms of this Ordinance. It shall be the duty of each owner and tenant 
to keep all exterior property free of litter or waste, these areas shall include, 
but not be limited to: sidewalks, public roads, alleys and driveways; yards 
and grounds; fences; walls and property lines; drainages and vacant lots in 
both residential and commercial areas. Any violation of this subsection shall 
constitute a Class 2 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 
of this Ordinance.  

 No person shall sweep into or deposit in any gutter, public road, street or 
water body within the County the accumulation of litter from any building or 
lot or from any public or private sidewalk or driveway. This includes, but is 
not limited to, rubbish, which includes grass clippings, hedge trimmings, 
leaves, pine needles, paper, plastic or other materials classified as litter or 
waste must be placed in an approved container and properly disposed. 
Persons owning or occupying property shall keep the sidewalk in front of 
their premises free of litter. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a 
Class 3 misdemeanor punishable as provided in Section 17.2-206 of this 
Ordinance.  

 Upon violation of this section, the County may proceed against either the 
tenant, owner or person in control or against all such persons. A warning 
citation as provided in Section 17.2-204(b) of this Ordinance shall be served 
on the owner or occupant of any premises upon which solid waste is found in 
violation of this section, giving the owner or occupant ten (10) days to remove 
such solid waste. If the owner or occupant does not comply with the terms of 



 

 
11 

 

such citation, he or she shall be served a summons for violation of this 
section. 

 This section shall not be deemed to prohibit the accumulation of litter 
awaiting the next regularly scheduled refuse or garbage collection if such 
property is served by the regularly scheduled garbage, refuse or litter 
collection. Such collections shall be deemed to be regular if such collection 
regularly occurs at least once per week or more frequently. 

3. Indiscriminate Dumping or Discarding of Litter and Solid Waste 

It shall be unlawful for any person to discard or dump along any street or 
road, on or off the right-of-way, any form of solid waste, rubbish, refuse, 
junk, motor vehicle or vehicle part, rubber tires, appliances, furniture, or 
any other material or equipment, on public or private property, with or 
without permission of the property owner, except in County approved 
receptacles provided for public use for the deposit of said material, or 
except in an area designated by the State Department of Health as a 
permitted solid waste disposal site or collection facility.  

C. Cleanup of Improperly Disposed Litter or Solid Waste 
1. Cleanup of Premises by County Authorization 

The owners of property within the County shall, within fourteen (14) days 
of receiving written notice from the County, remove from the property any and 
all trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances which might endanger the 
health or safety of other residents of the County. 

If after fourteen (14) days of receiving the notice, the owners of such 
property have failed to take action as directed by the notice, the County may 
have such trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances which might 
endanger the health or safety of other residents of the County, removed by its 
own agents or employees, in which event the cost or expense thereof shall be 
chargeable to and paid by the owners of such property and may be collected by 
the County as taxes are collected.  



 

 
12 

 

Execution of the notice to remove litter shall be in writing and shall be in 
the form set forth in Section 17.2-204 (b) of this ordinance and served by personal 
service, posted service or sent by registered mail. 

Every charge authorized by this section with which the owner of any such 
property shall have been assessed and which remains unpaid shall constitute a 
lien against such property ranking on a parity with liens for unpaid local taxes 
and enforceable in the same manner as provided in Articles 3 (§58.1-3940 et seq) 
and 4 (§ 58.1-3965 et seq) of Chapter 39 of Title 58.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended. The County may waive such liens in order to facilitate the sale of the property. 
Such liens may be waived only as to a purchaser who is unrelated by blood or marriage to 
the owner and who has no business association with the owner. All such liens shall 
remain a personal obligation of the owner of the property at the time the liens were 
imposed.  

 A violation of this section shall be subject to a civil penalty, not to exceed 
$50.00 for the first violation, or violations arising from the same set of 
operative facts. The civil penalty subsequent violations not arising from the 
same set of operative facts within 12 months of the first violation shall not 
exceed $200.00. Each business day during which the same violation is found 
to have existed shall constitute a separate offense. In no event shall a series of 
specified violation arising from the same set of operative facts result in civil 
penalties that exceed a total of $3,000.00 in a 12-month period.1  

 In the event three civil penalties have previously been imposed on the 
same defendant for the same or similar violation, not arising from the same 
set of operative facts, within a 24-month period a violation of this subsection 
shall be a Class 3 misdemeanor.2 

D. Litter Receptacles 
1. Use of Receptacles 

a. It shall be unlawful to deposit any item or items except litter in any 
receptacle placed for public use as a depository for littler. Any item or 
items, including litter, which are expressly prohibited from being 
placed in said receptacle by a sign or other writing located on or 

 
1 See §15.2-901 (C) for enabling act authorizing civil penalty by ordinance.   
2 See §15.2-901 (D) for enabling act authorizing Class 3 misdemeanor when three civil penalties have occurred.  



 

 
13 

 

around the receptacle, shall not be placed or deposited in said 
receptacle. 

b. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class 2 
misdemeanor. A second or subsequent offense shall constitute a Class 
1 misdemeanor.  

2. Providing Adequate Litter Receptacles for Businesses 

It shall be the duty of any person owning or operation any commercial 
establishment to provide receptacles adequate to contain the litter generated 
at said establishment. The penalty established for violation of this subsection 
shall be twenty-five ($25.00) dollars for each day of violation. The offender 
shall receive a summons from the enforcement officer for any violation of this 
subsection. The offender may pay the fine in lieu of appearing in court on any 
first offense.  

3. Providing Adequate Litter Receptacles for Residences 
a. All household solid waste shall be contained in receptacles or containers 

which conform to standards established by the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors. 

b. It shall be unlawful for any person to use an old appliance or other 
container deemed unacceptable by the County for trash collection. 

c. Any violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class 3 misdemeanor. 
E. Improper Disposal of Waste 
1. Depositing Improper Waste in Receptacles or Facilities 

a. It shall be unlawful to improperly dispose of any solid waste as 
defined in this Ordinance at a facility operated for or in a receptacle 
placed for public or private use. Improper disposal shall mean and 
include the depositing in such facility of solid waste which is not 
accepted or authorized for disposal by such facility. The types of waste 
not accepted at any such facility shall be displayed at the entrance of 
such facility or on the receptacle. 

F. Enforcement of Litter Laws; Prosecution; Presumption 
1. Enforcement  

a. Prosecution for a violation of any provision of this act may be initiated 
by the County Building Inspector, law enforcement officer, litter 
control officer, or private citizen.  



 

 
14 

 

2. Authorization of County Litter Control Office to Bring Civil Action 
Whereas Section 10.1-1418.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended 
authorizes the County to bring a civil action against any person who 
improperly disposes of solid waste on the property of the County, without 
the County’s permission. Whenever a court of competent jurisdiction finds 
that a person has improperly disposed of solid waste upon the County’s 
property, without the County’s permission, the court shall assess a civil 
penalty of up to five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) against such defendant, 
along with costs and reasonable attorney’s fees. Any civil penalty assessed 
pursuant to this subsection shall be paid into the Russell County treasury.  

3. Assign –A-Highway Roadside and Illegal Dump Cleanup 
For Cleanup of roadside litter and identified illegal dumps within the 
County, it is hereby established a program pursuant to Section 53.1-129 of the 
Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, and the Sheriff of the County and any of 
his deputies and any Special Conservator of the Peace/Litter Office who has 
been approved by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be permitted to 
utilize probationers or remove inmates from the County or Regional Jail 
under their supervision to work in this program providing that any such 
inmate has been specifically approved to be permitted to participate in this 
program by the Sheriff and by the Court. Probationers will be assigned to 
two-mile designated sections of highway, cleaned up every two weeks for the 
duration of their assignment to this program. Inmates shall be utilized only 
for the cleanup for illegal dumps identified by the County Litter Control 
Department. During the cleanup of illegal dumps, the Special Conservator of 
the Peace/Litter Control Officer or the Sheriff or his deputies will be present 
during this volunteer work. 

Sec. 17.2-204. Removal, disposal of trash and garbage.  

(a) The owners of property in the county shall not accumulate thereon and shall 
remove there from any and all trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other substances 
which might endanger the health or safety of other residents of the county.  

(b) Notice to property owner: 
1) The Board of Supervisors may, when it deems it necessary, give written 

notice to the owner of any property in the county, and to the person 
primarily responsible for such property, if different from the owner and if 



 

 
15 

 

know, stating the facts that constitute a violation of subsection (a) of this 
section and directing such person or persons to take such action as may be 
necessary to rectify the conditions within 14 days from the date of the 
notice.  

2) The notice required by the section shall be certified or registered mail to 
the last known address, or by hand delivery by the Sheriff of the County, 
his deputy, the county sanitation office or the designee of the County 
Administrator, to the owner of the property and to the person primarily 
responsible for such property, if different from the owner and if known, 
The notice shall be substantially in the following form: 

NOTICE TO REMOVE TRASH, GARBAGE, REFUSE, LITTER 
AND OTHER SUBSTANCES 

To: ____________________________ 
Responsible Party 

AT: _________________________ 
  ______________________ 

Address of property 
 

_______________________________ 
Tax Map Number 

 
Pursuant to Code of Virginia §15.2-802 of the Ordinances of Russell County, Virginia, 
you are hereby notified to remove, within 14 days after the date of this notice, all trash, 
garbage, refuse, litter and other substances that endanger the health or safety of other 
residents of the county, in particular (describe the conditions). Upon your failure to 
remove the same, the county’s agents or employees may remove such trash, garbage, 
refuse, litter and other substances that endanger the health or safety of other residents 
of the county, and the cost and expenses of such removal shall be chargeable to and 
paid by the owner of such property and may be collected by the county as taxes and 
levies are collected and shall constitute a lien on the property. 
 

 

(c) If the property is not cleaned up after receiving the notice required in subsection 
(b) of this section, the Board of Supervisors may have such trash, garbage, refuse, 
litter and other like substances that might endanger the health of other residents 
of the county removed by the county’s own agents and employees, in which 
event the cost and expenses thereof shall be chargeable to and paid by the 



 

 
16 

 

owners of such property and may be collected by the county as taxes and levies 
are collected.  

(d) Every charge authorized by this section with which the owner and lien holder of 
any such property shall have been assessed and which remains unpaid shall 
constitute a lien against such property ranking on a parity with lien for unpaid 
local taxes and enforceable in the same manner as provided in Code of Virginia, 
§§ 58.1-3940 et seq. and 58.1-3965 et seq. 

(e) Trash, garbage, refuse, litter and other debris shall be disposed of in personally 
owned or privately owned receptacles that are provided for such use and for the 
use of the persons and disposing such matter or in authorized facilities provided 
for such purpose, and in no other manner not authorized by law.  

§ 17.2-205. Dumping Trash on Highway, Right-Of-Way or Private Property. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to dump or otherwise dispose of trash, 
garbage, refuse, litter or other unsightly matter, on public property, including a 
public highway, right-of-way, property adjacent to such highway or right-of-
way, or on private property without the written consent of the owner thereof or 
his agent. 

(b) When any persons is arrested for a violation of this section, and the matter 
alleged to have been illegally dumped or disposed of has been ejected from a 
motor vehicle or transported to the disposal site in a motor vehicle, the arresting 
officer may comply with the provisions of Code of Virginia, §46.2-936, in making 
such arrest. 

(c) When a violation of the provisions of this section has been observed by any 
person, and the matter illegally dumped or disposed of has been ejected or 
removed from a motor vehicle, the owner or operator of such motor vehicle shall 
be presumed to be the person ejecting or disposing of such matter. However, 
such presumption shall be rebuttable by competent evidence.  

(d) Any person who violates this section shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a Class 1 
misdemeanor punishable by confinement in jail for not more than twelve (12) 
months and a fine of not less than $250.00 nor more than $2,500.00, either or both.  

(e) The provisions of this section shall not apply to the lawful disposal of such 
matter in landfills, the county transfer station or county convenience stations. 

(f) The Commonwealth Attorney of Russell County, Virginia or his designee shall 
be responsible for all prosecutions under this section. 



 

 
17 

 

§17.2-206. Penalties. 

 The authorized punishments for a conviction of a misdemeanor are:  

(a) For Class 1 misdemeanors, confinement in jail for not more than twelve months 
and a fine of not more than $2,500.00, either or both. 

(b) For Class 2 misdemeanors, confinement in jail for not more than six months and 
fine of not more than $1,000.00, either or both.  

(c) For Class 3 misdemeanors, a fine of not more than $500.00. 
(d) For Class 4 misdemeanors, a fine of not more than $250.00. 

§17.2-207. Effective Date of Ordinance. 

 This ordinance shall be effective on the ____ day of ___________, 2020. The 
County Administrator is directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance in the Offices 
of the Clerk of the General District Court of Russell County and the Clerk of the Circuit 
Court of Russell County. 

 

Adopted this the _____ day of __________, 2020. 

  

  

 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

   Meeting: 2/3/20       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• January 13, 2020 Board Minutes 
• January 21, 2020 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 13, 2020 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, January 13, 
2020 beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss 
legal matters pursuant to 2.2-3712(A), (3), (7) and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:   Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 



the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
Invocation by Travis Lambert, Morning Star Church followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Acknowledgements 
 
The Board of Supervisors recognized the following students for achieving Eagle Scout status: 
 
Mason Curtis Barton 
Benjamin Seth Greer 
Elliott Sinclair Horton 
Ethan James Chaffin 
 
Presentations 
 
Travis Lambert, President Lebanon Little League stated that the 11-12-year-old Boys State Tournament 
will be held at Glade Hollow Park this year.  He informed the Board that seating is limited and they really 
needed to make arrangements to accommodate the visitors that would attend.  Hess Excavating is 
willing to donate their time and labor to help with this problem.  He asked that the Board handle the 
ENS issues. 
 

 
 



APPROVAL TO ALLOW HESS EXCAVATING TO MAKE IMPROVEMENTS TO GLADE HOLLOW PARK 
 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve Hess Excavating to upgrade the park to accommodate more seating through tree removal and 
grading.  The County would be responsible for any ENS issues with the help of The Russell County PSA. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Rebecca Dye relinquished the Chair to the Clerk of the Board. 
 
Organizational Meeting 
 

REBECCA DYE ELECTED CHAIRPERSON 
 

David Eaton nominated Steve Breeding 
Lou Wallace nominated Rebecca Dye 
 
Rebecca Dye – Four votes:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian and Rebecca Dye 
Steve Breeding – Three votes:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Steve Breeding 
 
Rebecca Dye was elected Chairperson for CY 2020. 
 
The Clerk relinquished the Chair to Rebecca Dye. 
 

STEVE BREEDING ELECTED VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
Lou Wallace nominated Steve Breeding 
Tim Lovelace moved that nominations cease and Steve Breeding be appointed Vice Chairman by 
acclamation for CY 2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

LONZO LESTER APPOINTED AS CLERK OF THE BOARD FOR CY 2020 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Lonzo Lester Clerk of the Board for CY 2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

VICKI PORTER APPOINTED AS DEPUTY CLERK FOR CY 2020 
 



Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Vicki Porter Deputy Clerk of the Board for CY 2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

ROBERTS RULES OF ORDER ADOPTED FOR CY 2020 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adopt Roberts Rules of Order for CY 2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

COUNTY BY-LAWS ADOPTED FOR CY 2020 
 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to adopt 
the County Bylaws as presented for CY 2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETINGS SET FOR THE 1ST MONDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 6:00 PM 
 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
set the Board of Supervisors meetings for the first Monday of each month beginning at 6:00 pm, 
executive (closed) session, if necessary, begins at 5:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 02, 2019 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the December 02, 2019 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea and Rebecca Dye  
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Oris Christian 
 
 
 
 



APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 17, 2019 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the December 17, 2019 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea and Rebecca Dye  
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Oris Christian 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,118,180.59, including withholdings and 
reoccurring. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PRE-PAYMENT BILL LIST APPROVED for CY 2020 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the pre-payment bill list as presented for CY2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Appointments 
 
STEVE BREEDING APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND PLATEAU ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT EXECUTIVE 

BOARD 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Steve Breeding to the CPED Executive Board. (concurrent with BOS term) 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

LOU WALLACE APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND PLATEAU ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT EXECUTIVE 
BOARD 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Lou Wallace to the CPED Executive Board. (concurrent with BOS term) 
 
The vote was: 



Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CARL RHEA APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND PLATEAU ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Carl Rhea to the Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission. (concurrent with 
BOS term). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

 
TIM LOVELACE APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND PLATEAU ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Tim Lovelace to the Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission. (concurrent with 
BOS term). 

 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

ORIS CHRISTIAN APPOINTED TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Lou Wallace nominated Oris Christian. 
 
Hearing no other nominations, Oris Christian was appointed to the Planning Commission by 
acclamation. (concurrent with BOS term) 
 

CARL RHEA APPOINTED DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Carl Rhea as Director of Emergency Management (concurrent with BOS term). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian 
 

ORIS CHRISTIAN APPOINTED AS ASSISTANT EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR 
 
Motion may by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Oris Christian as Assistant Emergency Management Director (concurrent with BOS term). 
 
The vote was:   
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None  
 



The Chairperson appointed Tim Lovelace and Rebecca Dye to the budget committee for one (1) year. 
Oris Christian was appointed alternate. 
 

ORIS CHRISTIAN APPONTED TO THE SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA REGIONAL JAIL BOARD 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Oris Christian to the Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Board (concurrent with BOS term).  
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  Carl Rhea 
 

TIM LOVELACE APPOINTED TO THE SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA REGIONAL JAIL BOARD 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Tim Lovelace to the Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Board (concurrent with Bos term). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

LOU WALLACE APPOINTED TO THE CLEO BOARD 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Lou Wallace to the Chief Local Elected Officials Board (concurrent with BOS term). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay: None 
 

REBECCA DYE APPOINTED TO CPMT 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Rebecca Dye to the Community Policy Management Team. (concurrent with BOS term) 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay: None 
 

DAVID COMPTON AND EDWARD TILLER RE-APPOINTED TO CPMT 
 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to re-
appoint David Compton and Edward Tiller to the Finney Community Center Board for two (2) year terms, 
said terms ending January 13, 2022. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 



 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period.  Hearing none, citizens comment was closed. 
 
Constitutional Officer Reports 
 
Alicia McGlothlin, Treasurer congratulated the Board members on winning the election.  She also gave 
updates on tax collection, second notices, debt set off, etc. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
Personnel policy is being reviewed. 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

FY 2020/2021 BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE APPROVED 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the FY 2020/2021 budget committee meeting schedule as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ON LITTER ORDINANCE SET FOR FEBRUARY 03, 2020 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to hold a 
public hearing on the Litter Ordinance on February 03, 2020 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ON THE NOISE ORDINANCE SET FOR FEBRUARY 03, 2020 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
hold a public hearing on the Noise Ordinance on February 03, 2020 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE DANTE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Dante Community Redevelopment Project DMME AML Agreement. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL TO TABLE A COMPUTER PURCHASE REQUEST FOR THE ELECTORAL BOARD AND REGISTRAR 
 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to table 
the request for the purchase of new computers for the upcoming elections from the Registrar’s Office 
and the Electoral Board. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO REIMBURSE RUSSELL COUNTY COMBINED SEARCH AND RESCUE 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a reimbursement request from the Russell County Combined Search and Rescue not to exceed 
$2000.00 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE REGISTRAR AND ELECTORAL BOARD 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request for the Registrar and Electoral Board. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

 
APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE RCPL 

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from the Russell County Public Library. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN TO RECONVENE ON JANUARY 21, 2020 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace to adjourn to reconvene in Richmond, Virginia at 
the Hilton Richmond Downtown on Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 



Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

JANUARY 21, 2020 
 
A reconvened meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, January 21, 
2020 at 6:00 pm at the Hilton Richmond Downtown in Richmond, Virginia. 
 
The Clerk called the meeting back to order. 
 
Roll Call by the Clerk: 
 
Present: 
David Eaton (left the meeting on January 23, 2020, early morning) 
Steve Breeding (left the meeting on January 23, 2020, early morning) 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
Lou Wallace (joined the meeting on January 22, 2020) 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
Tim Lovelace 
Carl Rhea 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

 
Invocation by Rebecca Dye. 
 
New Business 
 
The Chair updated the Board on the schedule for January 22 and January 23, 2020. 
 
Other County Matters 
 
A discussion was held on the possibility of a residential and commercial disposal fee.  The Board also 
discussed the potential economic impact on proposed bills in the legislature. 
 

 
 
 



APPROVAL OF SOLID WASTE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution of Support of the Disposal of Solid Waste Amendment in SB 329 and HB 11865 
which adds Russell County’s name to the Code of Virginia 15.2-2159.  This would allow Russell County to 
assess a fee for waste disposal in the County should the financial situation of the County necessitate this 
action.  This motion requires a public hearing/informational meeting and evaluation of the financial 
impact of such an ordinance.   
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Oris Christian. 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Lou Wallace and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________                                     ________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                             Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 2/3/20      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s January 2020 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s January 2020 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s January 2020 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• January 2020 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

          Meeting: 2/3/20               6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
1. CPWMA Transfer Station User Agreement 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Board of Supervisors Action Item D-1 – D-10 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 2/3/20         6:00 PM 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for February 2020: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. U.S. Census Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP)………………………...D-1 

 
2. VCCS & VDSS Joint Supportive Services…………………………………………..D-2 

 
3. 2020 Legislative Forum: 1/21/20 – 1/23/20 Richmond, Virginia…..………..……D-3 

 
4. Heather Powers – RC Tourism Coordinator………………………………………..D-4 

 
5. County Registrar’s Office Computers……………………………………………….D-5 

 
REQUESTS 

  
1. RC Project Management Services Contract………………………………………..D-6 

 
2. Virginia Next Generation 9-1-1 Proposal Acceptance Letter (PAL)…………….D-7 

 
3. Mutual Aid Cooperation Agreement for Law Enforcement Services for                                  

Russell County and Scott County, Virginia………….……………………………..D-8 
 

4. Virginia General Assembly Resolution of Support of the “Get a Skill,                                             
Get a Job, Give Back” (G3) Initiative…………………………………………………D-9 

 
5. Travel Requests……………………….…………………………………………………D-10 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


BVP-L1-1 
(10·2019) 

OMB Control No.: 0607-0151 
Expiration Date: 11-30-2021 

January 2020 

Rebecca Dye 
Chairwoman 
Board of Supervisors 
PO Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA 24266-1208 

A Message from the Director, U.S. Census Bureau: 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
U.S. Census Bureau 
Office of the Director 
Washington, DC 20233-0001 Mail Stop 7400 

Sequence: 022390-005792 
BASID:25116700000 

The U.S. Census Bureau is now conducting the Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP). The Initial BVP is 
your opportunity, as the Highest Elected Official, to review the Census Bureau's boundary data to ensure the 
Census Bureau has the correct legal boundary, name, and status for your government. The Census Bureau 
uses this boundary information to tabulate data for the 2020 Census. 

The Initial BVP package includes an Initial BVP form and paper maps, or a CD/DVD containing maps, for your 
government. The maps should reflect the legal boundary for your government effective on January 1, 2020. 
Please review our depiction of your legal boundary for accuracy and return the completed 
Initial BVP form by March 1, 2020. Return the completed Initial BVP form by email at 
<geo.bas@census.gov>, by fax (1-800-972-5652), or using the enclosed postage-paid envelope. 

The Initial BVP is conducted in parallel with the 2020 Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS). If any 
information is incorrect, please work with your BAS contact to submit corrections. Information for your BAS 
contact is printed below. If boundary updates are submitted to the BAS by March 1, 2020, you will have an 
additional opportunity to verify your government's boundaries prior to the final data tabulation for the 2020 
Census. Changes received after March 1, 2020 will be used to correct the boundary, but we will not have 
sufficient time to send you an updated map before final data tabulations. 

BAS Contact Information 

Our records indicate your BAS contact is: 

Name: Lonzo Lester 
Position: County Administrator 
Department: Administration 
Mailing Address: PO Box 1208 

Lebanon, VA 24266-1208 
Phone: 276-889-8000 
Email: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

Please contact the Census Bureau with questions about the BVP or BAS through email at 
<geo.bas@census.gov>, by phone at 1-800-972-5651, or visit our website at 
<https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html>. Thank you for your participation 
in the Initial BVP. 

Enclosures 

census· 
2020 census.gov 



FORM BVP-F1 ·I 
(10-10-2019) 

OMB Control No.: 0607-0151 
Expiration Date: 11-30-2021 

BASID:25116700000 
Sequence:022390-005792 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
U.S. Census Bureau 
Office of the Director 
Washington, DC 20233-0001 Mail Stop 7400 

Ill 1111111111111111111111111111111 

2020 Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP) 

The U.S. Census Bureau is now conducting the Initial BVP. The Initial BVP is your opportunity, as the Tribal 
Chair (TC)/Highest Elected Official (HEO), to review and ensure the Census Bureau's boundary data for your 
government is accurate. The enclosed paper maps or maps on the CD/DVD should reflect the legal boundary 
for your government effective on January 1, 2020. 

Please review the maps for accuracy, then complete and return this form to the Census 
Bureau by March 1, 2020. (Please check a box. Sign below if the boundary is correct.) 

D The legal boundary for our government is correct. (Please sign below.) 

D The legal boundary for our government is NOT correct. 

I, as the Tribal Chair/Highest Elected Official, verify that the boundary for our governmental unit is 
correct. 

Signature:--------------------------------

Print Name: ______________________________ _ 

Date: ________ ~ 

Tribal Reservation/Government Name: _R_u_s_s~e_ll _________ State: --'V-'-A-'----

If the Census Bureau's boundary is incorrect, please work with your Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS) 
contact to submit corrections through the BAS program. Information for your BAS contact is found on the cover 
letter in this package. 

Please review and correct the contact information printed below. Our records indicate the TC/HEO contact is: 

Name: Rebecca Dye 
Position: Chairwoman 
Department: Board of Supervisors 
Mailing Address: PO Box 1208 

Lebanon, VA 24266-1208 
Phone: 276-889-8000 
Email: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

Form return options: 

Email: 
Scan and email the completed 
form to 
<geo.bas@census.gov>. 

r United Slates 

Lensus 
----AurP;111 

census· 
2020 

Fax: 
Fax the completed form to 
1 ·800-972-5652 

Mail: 
Use the provided postage-paid 
envelope to mail the completed 
form to 
U.S. Census Bureau 
National Processing Center 
Attn: BVP Returns, Bldg. 63E 
1201 East 1 Oth Street 
Jeffersonville, IN 47132 

census.gov 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



We estimate that completing this program will take a total of 2 hours on average. Send comments regarding this burden 
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to 
<geo.bas@census.gov>. This collection has been approved by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB). The eight 
digit OMB approval number that appears at the upper left of the letter confirms this approval. If this number were not 
displayed, we could not conduct this survey. The Census Bureau conducts this program under the legal authority of the 
Title 13 U.S. Code, Section 6. 

BVP-F1-I (10-10-2019) 



Boundary and Annexation 
Survey (BAS) 

BAS Overview 
Every year, the U.S. Census Bureau conducts the BAS to collect information 
about selected legally defined geographic areas. The BAS provides tribal, 
state, and local governments an opportunity to review the Census Bureau's 
boundary data to ensure the Census Bureau has the correct legal boundary, 
name, and status information. 

During the BAS, governments can report legal boundary 
changes, such as incorporations, disincorporations, ~ ILj=i 
annexations, and deannexations. Governments can also ~ i 
update boundaries, features, and landmarks for: ;J:._ 

• Cities, towns, boroughs, and villages ( incorporated places). ~ 
• Townships and towns (minor civil divisions). Em 
• Counties (or county equivalents). 
• Consolidated cities. 
• Roads and other applicable features. 

Benefits of BAS Participation 
The Census Bureau uses legal boundaries collected through the BAS to 
tabulate data for the decennial census. 

Responding to the BAS ensures that tribal, state, and local govern
ments have the most accurate boundary data available for the 
tabulation of decennial census housing and population counts. This 
data is the base for ongoing programs such as the American 
Community Survey and Population Estimates Program. Government 
agencies and other groups use this tabulated data to allocate more 
than $675 bill ion in federal fund ing to communities across the country. 
Legal boundary data is also made publicly available and is used by 
federal agencies, researchers, and the public. Participation in the BAS 
ensures that governments receive the funds for which they are entitled 
and have the best data available for decision-making processes. 

Accurate boundary records directly affect 
the quality of life in your community. 

Accurate boundaries allow 
us to count your community's 
residents accurately. 

censu1s· 
-----•Bureau 

U.S. Department of Commerce 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU 

census.gov 

ti ti ti 



The Boundary Validation Program (BVP) 
and Its Relation to the BAS 
The Census Bureau is conducting the BVP in parallel with the 2020 BAS. 
For the BVP, highest elected officials (HEOs) are asked to review and 
confirm their government's boundary, legal name, and status information. 
The HEOs are instructed to work with their BAS contact to report any 
corrections through the 2020 BAS. Visit <www.census.gov/programs 
-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html> for more information on the BVP. 

Responding to the BAS is easy. 
The Census Bureau provides multiple free, user-friendly methods for the BAS 
contact to report boundary corrections through participation in the BAS. 

Paper option 

Participants can request free paper maps and annotation materials from the 
BAS Web site. 

Basic digital option 

The Geographic Update Partnership Software (GUPS) is a free, customized 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) tool. It was specifically developed for 
people who do not have geographic training or are not experienced GIS users. 

Advanced digital option 

Experienced GIS users have the opportunity to download shapefiles from the 
BAS Web site and make updates using their own GIS software (e.g ., ArcGIS). 

Will the Census Bureau contact my 

government for the BAS program? 
The Census Bureau will send the BAS Annual 
Response e-mail to key contacts for each government 
every year. This includes: 

• The government's HEO, such as the mayor or 
county executive. 

• A GIS staff, planner, clerk, or other contact. 

Relevant state-level official. 

Version 4, 72/78/2079 



Boundary Validation 
Program 

What is the 2020 Boundary 
Validation Program (BVP)? 
The BVP provides Tribal Chairs (TCs) and 
Highest Elected Officials (HEOs) of eligible tribal, 
state, and local governments a final opportunity to 
ensure the U.S. Census Bureau has the correct 
legal boundary, name, and status for their 
government. The Census Bureau will use this 
information to tabulate data for the 2020 Census. 

The BVP validates the creation, dissolution, and changes 
in boundaries for: 
• All federally recognized tribes with reservations and/or off-reservation trust land. 
• All actively functioning counties or county equivalents. 
• Incorporated places (including consolidated cities). 
• All functioning minor civil divisions. 
• Municipios, barrios, barrio-pueblos and subbarrios in Puerto Rico. 

How does the BVP relate to Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS)? 
The BVP is conducted every (10) years to provide TCs and HEOs the opportunity to 
review the boundary data collected during the BAS. The program is administered in two 
phases (Initial BVP and Final BVP) and runs in parallel with the 2020 BAS. TCs and 
HEOs will receive BVP materials approximately (2) weeks after the BAS contact 
receives the 2020 BAS annual response e-mail or letter. This provides TCs and HEOs an 
opportunity to review their legal boundary to verify or provide corrections prior to the 
2020 Census. If boundary corrections are required, TCs and HEOs are instructed to 
work with their BAS contact to provide updates through the 2020 BAS. 

How does the BVP benefit you? 
The U.S. Census Bureau uses legal boundaries collected through the BAS to tabulate 
data for the 2020 Census. 

Responding to the BVP ensures that tribal, state, and local governments have the most 
accurate boundary data available for the tabulation of the 2020 Census housing and 
population counts. This data is the base for ongoing programs such as the American 
Community Survey and Population Estimates Program. Government agencies and 
other groups use this tabulated data to allocate $675 billion of government funds to 
communities across the country. Legal boundary data is also made publicly available 
and is used by federal agencies, researchers, and the public. 

'\'(1111 p!.J llC ip1.\lt>J1 Il l \ht [31:,t:; 

li e ii * Ilic· c~1· 1 1~ 1 1~ H11(·f·11 
((>Jo\i l>!J(·\(>J>INil11(.,('( ll1i:IC 

(i f.\(., wh1c-! 1 1i l1 (· ( II\' 1-lit·c-tto thl 
c'J"i·l llv (11 ,1 11(: 11 1 )'<0 111 <t>1,,1 1n1111h1• 

censuts· 
------ Bureau 

f: ,;: i1C>W1 

ll l1 l•l•l\\1'f', 

U.S. Department of Commerce 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU 

census.gov 



How to participate? 
The BVP is conducted in two phases, Initial BVP and Final BVP. During 
each of these phases, TCs and HEOs are instructed to work with their BAS 
contact to review and update their government's boundary, name, and status 
information. TCs and HEOs do not need to register to participate in BVP. The 
materials will be provided automatically. 

Initial BVP 
The Initial BVP materials include an Initial BVP letter, form, and paper maps or a 
CD/DVD containing PDF maps. The maps should reflect the legal boundary for the 
government effective on January 1, 2020. TCs and HEOs are instructed to review the 
Census Bureau's depiction of the legal boundary for accuracy and to return the 
completed Initial BVP form by March 1, 2020. 

If the information is correct, no further action is required . 

If any information is incorrect, TCs and HEOs should work with their BAS contact to 
submit corrections through the 2020 BAS. If boundary updates are submitted to the 
BAS by March 1, 2020, TCs and HEOs will have an additional opportunity to verify their 
government's boundary prior to final data tabulation for the 2020 Census. Changes 
received after March 1, 2020 will be used to correct the boundary, but there will not be 
sufficient time to send updated maps before final data tabulations for the 2020 Census. 

Final BVP 
The Final BVP provides an opportunity for TCs and HEOs to review recent boundary 
updates provided through the 2020 BAS. Only governments that reported corrections 
to the 2020 BAS on or before March 1, 2020 will receive Final BVP materials. The Final 
BVP materials include a Final BVP letter, form, and a paper map or map index sheet. 
The maps should reflect the legal boundary for the government effective on January 1, 
2020. TCs and HEOs are instructed to review the Census Bureau's depiction of the legal 
boundary for accuracy and to return the completed Final BVP within five (5) business 
days. 

If the boundary is correct, no further act ion is required. 

If any information is incorrect, TCs and HEOs should work with their BAS contact 
to submit corrections, within five (5) business days of receipt of materials. 

Responding with boundary updates is easy. 
The Census Bureau provides multiple free, user-friendly methods for the BAS contact 
to report boundary correc.tions through participation in BAS. 

• Paper option : Participants can request free paper maps and annotation 
materials from the BAS Web site. 

• Basic digital option: The Geographic Update Partnership Software (GUPS) 
is a free, customized Geographic Information Systems (GIS) tool. It was 
specifically developed for people who do not have geographic train ing or are 
not experienced GIS users. Please note that the GUPS option will not be 
available to report boundary updates during the Final BVP phase. 

• Advanced digital option: Experienced GIS users have the opportunity to 
download shapefiles from the BAS Web site and make updates using their 
own GIS software (e.g., ArcGIS). 

Version 7, 70/09/2079 



ReadMe 
Boundary Validation Program: ReadMe_BoundaryValidationProgram.txt 
U.S. Census Bureau 
Geography Division 

The Initial Boundary Validation Program (BVP) provides the Tribal Chair/Highest Elected Official an 
opportunity to review the Census Bureau's boundary data to ensure it is accurate prior to the tabulation 
of data for the 2020 Census. 

This Compact Disc/Digital Versatile Disc (CD/DVD) contains the maps for your government. The maps should 
reflect the legal boundary for your government effective on January 1, 2020. Please review our depiction 
of your legal boundary for accuracy using the provided maps and return the Initial BVP form found in 
your Initial BVP package. 

If the boundary is NOT correct, please work with your Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS) contact to 
submit updates through the 2020 BAS. 

The contact information for your government's BAS contact is printed on the cover letter of the Initial 
BVP package. 

The map files on this disc are in Adobe's Portable Document Format (PDF) and are designed to be viewed 
with Adobe Reader (version 6 or later). 

Adobe Reader is available free from Adobe at: https://acrobat.adobe.com/us/en/acrobat/pdf-reader.html. 

WHAT MATERIALS ARE INCLUDED ON THE CD/DVD? 

The materials you receive on the CD/DVD are outlined below: 

1. Boundary and Annexation Survey (BAS) PDF maps. 
2. Readme_BoundaryValidationProgram.txt file. 
3. BVP Flyer. 

Tip for reviewing your government boundary: 

Compare the boundary from the BAS PDF maps to a local boundary data source for your government. 
Local boundary sources may include: 

1. Local plat maps. 
2. Local boundary digital data such as shapefiles or online map viewers. 

You can find additional information about the BVP and BAS at our website: 
<https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html> 

We encourage you to contact the Census Bureau with any questions about the Initial BVP. 

Phone: 1-800-972-5651 

Email: <geo.bas@census.gov> 

Website: <https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/bas/information/bvp.html> 

Boundary Validation Program File: ReadMe_BoundaryValidationProgram.txt 

Page 1 



Redistricting Constraints 

Districts 
New Magisterial District lines in Russell County must divide the County's population into equal 

proportions of the population. The County's total population is 28,897. 

Assuming the County maintains five Magisterial Districts, the ideal District size is 5780 (28,897 divided 

by five) . 

The Magisterial Districts must be within+ or- 5% of the ideal size. 

Ideal: 28,897 (5 Districts) 

Upper range limit (+5%): 6,069 

Lower range limit (-5%): 5,491 

Precincts 
Precincts are measured by registered voters, not by population. Precincts make up a magisterial District, 

and must be wholly contained within one District. 

The minimum size for a precinct is 100 registered voters. 

The maximum size for a precinct is 5,000 registered voters. 

Criteria 
Election district population shall be "as nearly equal as practicable." 

Election district populations shall not exceed five percent less or five percent more than the ideal district 

population. 

Election districts shall be compact and contiguous, with due regard to natural features and accessibility 

of voting places. 

Election district boundaries shall follow clearly observable boundaries. 

Election district boundaries shall be politically fair. 

Election district boundaries shall preserve communities of interest, to the maximum extent possible. 

Election district boundaries shall recognize incumbency, to the maximum extent permissible under law 

and consistent with the other criteria. 



Russell County 2011 Redistricting 

2010 2000 Difference Notes 

Total Population 28,897 29,258 -361 (Year 2000 Census Error Correction ) 

Active Voters 17,882 17,518 364 

Population Deviation from Mean of 5780 Percentage of Deviation 

District 1 6,345 565 9.78% 

District 2 5,522 -258 -4.46% 

District 3 4,956 -824 -14.26% 

District 4 5,544 -236 -4.08% 

District 5 6,530 750 12.98% 

Total Population 28,897 

Precinct Population Precinct Population 

Moccasin 2,349 East Lebanon 2,926 

Copper Creek 1,830 West Lebanon 3,604 

South Castlewood 2,166 

North Castlewood 2,957 

Dante 1,013 

Cleveland 1,552 

Cooks Mill 683 

Daughterty 219 

Honaker 4,054 

Drill 327 

Swords Creek 2,793 

Elk Garden 2,424 



FORM C.·650 (1H9-2018) OMB. No. 0607-1003: Approval Expires 02/28/2021 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Economics and Statistics Administration 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU census-

2020 
2020 Census Participant Statistical Areas 

Program (PSAP) 
Quick Reference: Census Tracts 

Census tracts are relatively permanent geographic divisions of a county or county equivalent. The purpose of the 
census tract is to provide a set of nationally consistent, relatively small statistical units, with stable boundaries, that 
facilitate analysis of data across time. The U.S. Census Bureau prioritizes the comparability of census tracts from 
decade to decade. Therefore, we request that you do not change the outer boundaries of any census tracts when 
making census tract updates, unless it is a correction due to boundary or feature inaccuracy. The Census Bureau uses 
census tracts in the tabulation and presentation of data from the decennial census and the American Community Survey 
(ACS). 

Census Bureau criteria specify that census tracts must: 
• Nest within county boundaries. 
• Cover the entire land and water area of the county. 
• Be reasonably compact and contiguous. 
• Meet the population/housing unit thresholds as specified in Table 1. For counties that have fewer than 1,200 residents, 

the Census Bureau will define one census tract that encompasses the entirety of the county. 

• Have census tract codes ranging from 1 to 9989 that must be unique within each county. Special use tract codes must 
range from 9800 to 9899. The acceptable range of census tract suffixes for split census tracts is from .01 to .98. 

Census Bureau guidelines recommend that census tracts: 
•Have boundaries that follow visible features (e.g., roads, rivers) or other acceptable features (e.g., tribal reservation, 

tribal subdivision, incorporated place, and minor civil division boundaries). 
• Be merged when census tracts are below the minimum population (1,200) or housing unit (480) count with adjacent 

census tracts. Participants should split any census tracts above maximum population (8,000) or housing unit (3,200) 
counts into multiple census tracts. When revising tracts, participants should aim to meet or exceed the optimum 
population (4,000) or housing unit (1,600) thresholds to increase the reliability of sample data for census tracts. 

Table 1: Census Tract Thresholds 

Census Tract Type 
Threshold Optimum Minimum Maximum Type 

Population 4,000 1,200 8,000 
Standard Census Tracts 

Housing Unit 1,600 480 3,200 

Special Use Census 
At least comparable Tracts 

Area measurement in size to surrounding 

(Encompassing an census tracts 

employment center, large 
airport, park, forest, or 
large water body with no 
(or very little) population 
or housing units) Employment Suggested minimum of 1,200 workers or jobs 

Refer to the Respondent Guide for complete instructions. 



FORM G 0 640 (11,19-2018) OMB. No. 0607-1003: Approval Expires 02/28/2021 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Economics and Statistics Administration 
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU 

2020 Census Participant Statistical Areas 
Program (PSAP) 

Quick Reference: Block Groups 

A block group is a statistical geographic subdivision of a census tract. Local participants are provided an opportunity to 
review and if necessary, suggest updates to the boundaries and attributes of the block groups in their geographic area 
through the 2020 Census PSAP. The U.S. Census Bureau uses block groups in the tabulation and presentation of data 
from the decennial census and the American Community Survey (ACS). 

Census Bureau criteria specify that standard block groups must: 

• Nest within census tract boundaries. 
• Cover the entire land and water area of each census tract. 

• Be reasonably compact and contiguous. 
• Meet the population and/or housing unit thresholds as specified in Table 1. For counties that have fewer than 1,200 

residents, the Census Bureau will define one census tract and one block group that encompasses the entirety of the 
county. 

•Have no more than nine block groups (excluding water blocks) contained within a single census tract. 

•Have a unique code, between O and 10, within each census tract. To identify each standard block group, a single-digit 
code is used that will correspond to the first digit in the code of each block encompassed by the block group (e.g., all 
blocks within block group 3 will be numbered in the 3000 range). A zero is to be used to denote a water-only block 
group. 

Census Bureau guidelines recommend that standard block groups: 
•Have boundaries that follow visible features (e.g., roads, rivers) or other acceptable features (e.g., incorporated place, 

minor civil division, and American Indian reservation boundaries). 
•Be delineated as a special use block group if coextensive with a special use census tract, encompassing an 

employment center, large airport, public park, public forest, or large water body with no (or very little) population or 
housing units. 

Table 1: Block Group Thresholds 

Block Group Type 
Population Housing Unit Area Measurement 
Threshold Threshold Threshold 

Min.: 600 Min.: 240 None 

Standard Block 
Groups Max.: 3,000 Max.: 1,200 None 

None (or very little) or None (or very little) or At least comparable 
Special Use Block within the standard within the standard in land area size to 

Groups block group thresholds block group thresholds surrounding block groups 

Refer to the Respondent Guide for complete instructions. 



..__ : •••• : ~'MIU l1(UllVATIJN!TAllHJ 

c;::;..'t:;- .. ~ Tlllll 

~0~- lt-t-town414(.0 

=p.-ri- • •• ••• lt!muCCD~l(ISO 

00000000 

C.-~.-1-• :···· ····: 
•i.»I'" : •••••••• : 

.--

MJtronn .;;~.on 

Davit llU OO 

= 1- ·-· I 
e:;:;:;:;~ 

c~~~·::::; 

==-~ 
'C'-'..""::.o:J 

~ 

~-- ~ 
I ·-··· I 
1-w·· i 

~--~ I·-· I 
1--~ I 

... __ _,·""""' \ICS><'Cll-,-U. .. _._ .. 

::"Z..:::::.i~..6'=-.!::..."=.~Z.:.---......... ______ ,~ 
~-::.:.--.i""'--~-"-·-----
,.,,..-... ~·~l.ll:D.Tlo.·-··..._ ___ ..ir. 
·=-.:-:.~------;,.i .... _ _.,. ... __ .,... 
J~,....._ .... __ .... ___ ........... . 
!:::::.'='='.:;::::... 
~"'::"~iZl':.'::i:'7"-"t..~-_,,...,_.,._._ 



Russell County, Virginia 

Legend 

c:::J 2010 Tracts 

c:::J 2010 Block Groups 

1st Number - Tract or Block Group Number 
2nd Number = Population 
3rd Number - Households 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



Russell County, Virginia 

Legend 

CJ Proposed 2020 Tracts 

CJ Proposed 2020 Block Groups 

1st Number - Tract or Block Group Number 
2nd Number = Population 
3rd Number - Households 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



STATEFP COUNTYFP TRACTCE BLKGRPCE BLKGRPID BGTYP 

51 167 030201 1 511670302011 
51 167 030201 2 511670302012 
51 167 030201 3 511670302013 
51 167 030201 4 511670302014 
51 167 030202 1 511670302021 
51 167 030202 2 511670302022 
51 167 030403 1 511670304031 
51 167 030403 2 511670304032 
51 167 030403 3 511670304033 
51 167 030403 4 511670304034 
51 167 030404 1 511670304041 
51 167 030404 2 511670304042 



STATEFP COUNTYFP TRACTCE TRACTTYP 

51 167 030201 

51 
51 

51 

167 
167 

167 

030202 
030403 

030404 



 
January 27, 2020 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Presidents 
 
FROM:  Sharon Morrissey, Senior Vice Chancellor for Academic & Workforce Programs 
  Randall Stamper, Assistant Vice Chancellor for Grants and Federal Programs 
 
Subject: SNAP Education & Training Program Implementation 
 
As you know, VCCS signed an agreement with the Virginia Department of Social Services establishing a 
partnership with them for the SNAP Education and Training Program. Under this program, we will be 
able to draw down federal matching funds based on our non-federal expenditures in support of SNAP 
recipients who are enrolled at your colleges. The program will match 50% of the total non-federal 
expenditures for education and training, career coaching, scholarships, and support services.   
 
The agreement is in place from February 1, 2020, through September 30, 2020, and there are five one-
year extensions available. While there are many details to be worked out, we want to provide you an 
overview of where we stand now. At the request of the U.S. Department of Agriculture, which 
administers the funding, the initial eight months of the program will focus on matching non-federal 
expenditures related to FastForward programs, FANTIC, FastForward career coaching, and Great 
Expectations coaching. System office staff will conduct data matching with the VDSS to identify which 
students participating in those programs were also on SNAP at the time of their participation. In our 
application to VDSS, we estimated a $1.7 million match in the first eight months.  
 
VCCS will request matching funds from VDSS on a quarterly basis, and we look forward to talking with 
you at the upcoming ACOP meeting as we develop a methodology to distribute those funds to your 
colleges. We will also discuss ways to use these funds to support student success initiatives, such as 
coaching, tutoring, emergency funding, and other related services. 
 
In addition, we want to help other eligible students receive SNAP benefits. We will work with staff at 
VDSS to provide training and support to coaches, advisors, and others at your colleges who can help 
students who are eligible for SNAP benefits to become enrolled. More information on training will be 
coming soon. Any non-federal funds that are used to support additional students who are receiving 
SNAP benefits may be reported back to USDA for 50% matching funds.  
 
We appreciate your support and excitement as we begin to implement this program. We will need your 
help both in the initial 8-month startup phase and as we grow the program in years to come. We look 
forward to working with you to make the most of this opportunity.  
 
C: Glenn DuBois, Chancellor 





 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

 

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 

January 2020 Regular Board Meeting  

Reconvened 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will be reconvening the January 13, 2020 
board meeting until January 21, 2020.     

The Russell County Board of Supervisors Board Meeting will be held in the Richmond 
Virginia to attend and participate in Virginia’s 2020 Legislative Forum from January 21, 
2020 to January 23, 2020 concerning upcoming legislative matters of the County. 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES  

 
Russell County, Virginia will accept proposals until 
Thursday, November 20, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., from 
qualified firms (“Offerors”) to provide professional 
services for the provision of Project Management 
Services.   
 
To Provide Project Management Services for all phases of 
construction and construction related projects under the 
Public Private Education Facilities Infrastructure Act 
(PPEA).   
 
Russell County intends to select one firm to provide 
these services using the competitive negotiation 
procedure for professional services as defined in 
Section 2.2-4301 of the Virginia Public Procurement Act. 

 
Full copies of the Request for Proposals (RFP) may be 
requested by contacting Mr. Lonzo Lester, County 
Administrator, at (276) 889-8000, or by email at  
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us. 

 



Page 1 of 13  

 

RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

 
 

FOR 
 

THE PROVISION OF 
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSAL ISSUING DATE:  OCTOBER 24, 2019 

 
PROPOSAL CLOSING DATE: 2:00 P.M., NOVEMBER 20, 2019 



Page 2 of 13  

INDEX 
 

SECTION PAGE 
 
1.0 PURPOSE  ............................................................................................................................ 3. 

 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES  ...................................................................................................... 3.. 

 
3.0 CONTACT PERSON(S) ................................................................................................. 5 

4.0 PROPOSAL ISSUING AND CLOSING ....................................................................... 5 

5.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION ............................................................................................ 6. 

6.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS  ................................................................................................ 6. 

7.0 CONTRACT TERM AND CONDITIONS ................................................................... 10 

8.0 INSURANCE ................................................................................................................. 11 

9.0 PAYMENT TERMS ...................................................................................................... 12 

10.0 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT ........................................................................... 12 

11.0 PROPOSAL CONTENT .............................................................................................. 12 

12.0 PROPOSAL SELECTION PROCESS ........................................................................ 13 

13.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS .................................................................................... 13 



Page 3 of 13  

Russell County will accept sealed proposals until, but no later than 2:00 p.m., November 20, 
2019 for the provision of Project Management Services. 

 
1.0 PURPOSE 

 
It is Russell County's desire to establish a term contract with a qualified project 
management/construction management firm/firms on an hourly rate basis. 

 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The successful proposer may be requested to provide any combination of services listed 
below. 

 
2.1 Provide Project Management Services for all phases of construction and 

construction related projects under the Public Private Education Facilities 
Infrastructure Act (PPEA) and local promulgated guidelines, including: 

 
A. Evaluation of the most advantageous procurement method to be used for 

specific, proposed construction projects. 
 

B. Evaluation of unsolicited bids or proposals. 
 

C. Presentations to relevant committees and boards. 
 

D. Development of project requests for bids or proposals. 
 

E. Evaluation of proposals for proposed construction projects. 
 

F. Coordination with County staff and committees for complete construction 
management services. 

 
2.2 Provide Project Management services for Design-Build Construction projects in 

compliance with the Virginia Public Procurement Act. 
 

2.3 Project management services for other type projects that may include the 
following as requested by the County; 

 
A. Provide preliminary services to develop the concept and scope of work for a 

construction or development related project. 
 

B. Provide general oversight, monitor, and inspect critical construction activities 
for project construction. 

 
C. Provide quality control and ensure that the project meets the technical 

specifications as prescribed by the project manual. 



Page 4 of 13  

D. Serve as a member of the construction team consisting of representatives 
from the owner, architect/engineer, and contractor. 

 
E. Set up project records management system, maintain reports of the 

construction activity and monitor project schedules. 
 

F. Review and provide recommendations to the owner for monthly progress 
payments/change orders and monitor the financial health of the project. 

 
G. Review shop drawings monitor Request for Information (RFI), and track 

submittal approval process. 
 

H. Provide timely responses to in the field engineering/construction issues that 
may arise. 

 
I. Represent the County in resolving questions with the architect, the contractor, 

and subcontractors about the project such as RFI's, potential change orders, 
submittals, shop drawing approvals, and architectural/engineering addendums. 

 
J. Insures third party testing of construction materials and building code 

compliance. 
 

K. Maintain activities log that would summarize the daily activities of the 
construction progress and track milestones and deliverables. 

 
L. Regularly monitors of " As Built" record drawings and changes to the original 

set of architectural drawings. 
 

M. Secure & review O&M manuals for submission to the owner at completion of 
project and insure adequate training of maintenance staff. 

 
N. Prepare final punch list inspection reports and coordinate the final acceptance 

of the project with the owner and architect. 
 

0. When required, lead negotiations in coordination with Owners Construction 
Management Representative, construction inspector and architect with the 
contractor regarding potential change orders or other changes in the scope of 
work. 

 
P. Identify, resolve issues, and conflicts within the project team 

 
2.4 Other duties as may be required by the owner that require the same skills to 

provide the services as listed above on the management of another activity as 
determined by the County. 



Page 5 of 13  

A. Provide services to work with outside agencies or other government entities to 
negotiate contracts or obtain permits. 

 
B. Assist with start-up of or manage special projects as needed. 

 
C. Manage operations of units within the local government for a limited time 

until permanent arrangement can be made. 
 

D. Serve as the County's agent/representative in negotiations with both public 
and private entities in the acquisition of properties, leases, and agreements 
necessary for the completion of County sponsored projects. 

 
2.5 The County desires to establish a contract for an hourly rate with the successful 

proposer. It is anticipated that the hourly rate would become the basis for 
establishing fixed or not to exceed price agreements for identified projects, whose 
scope can be generally defined. 

 
2.6 The County anticipates that services of the successful proposer would be utilized 

for any projects as determined in the final authorized scope of work; however, it 
retains the option of seeking competitive arrangements for any such project or 
phase thereof. 

 
2.7 It is anticipated that price agreements for specific projects would include all costs 

of labor, services, office expenses, phone calls and local travel. Costs for extended 
travel, printing and advertising may be negotiated separately. 

 
3.0 CONTACT PERSON(S) 

Questions regarding this Request for Proposals should be directed to:  

            Lonzo Lester 
Russell County 
137 Highlands Drive 
P.O. Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
Phone: 276-889-8000 
E-mail: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

 
4.0 PROPOSAL ISSUING AND CLOSING 

 
4.1 Proposal Issuing Date: October 24, 2019 

 
4.2 Proposal Closing Date: 2:00 PM, November 20, 2019 



Page 6 of 13  

5.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION 
 

5.1 Three (3) copies of each proposal must be submitted to the Russell County 
Administrator’s Office, 137 Highland Drive, P.O. Box 1208, Lebanon, Virginia 
24266, in a sealed envelope and marked: SEALED REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSAL (RFP-002), DO NOT OPEN. Proposals must be submitted no later 
than 2:00 PM, November 20, 2019. 

 
5.2 No proposals will be accepted after the proposal closing date. The date of postmark 

will not be considered. 
 

5.3 Proposals may be withdrawn by written request from the proposer to the County 
Administrator prior to the proposal closing date. 

 
5.4 All proposals must be signed by an individual authorized to bind the proposer 

company. 
 

5.5 All proposals become the property of Russell County. 
 
6.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 
6.1 It is the responsibility of the proposer to inquire about and clarify any requirements 

of this Request for Proposals that is not understood. 
 

6.2  Any information relative to interpretation of these specifications shall be requested 
in writing to the Russell County Administrator within five (5) working days of the 
date set for the opening of proposals. 

 
6.3 No protest regarding the validity or appropriateness of the specifications will be 

considered, unless the protest is filed in writing with the County Purchasing Agent 
prior to the closing date for proposals. 

 
6.4 Each proposal is received with the understanding that the acceptance in writing by 

Russell County of the offeror to furnish any or all of the services described therein 
shall constitute a binding agreement which shall bind the proposer to furnish and/or 
deliver the services quoted at the price stated and in accordance with all conditions 
of said accepted proposal. Russell County, on its part is to order from successful 
proposer, except for causes beyond reasonable control, and pay for at the agreed 
prices goods and services specified and delivered. 

 
6.5 Russell County reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals received. 

 
6.6 Termination for Convenience 

 
This Agreement may be terminated by Russell County upon not less than thirty 
days' written notice to the contractor for the County's Convenience and without 



Page 7 of 13  

cause. In the event of such termination, the Contractor shall be compensated for 
authorized services performed prior to termination. 

 
6.7 Prospective proposers acknowledge, by submission of a proposal, they have had the 

opportunity prior to submitting their proposal, to raise any questions which they 
might have had about the solicitation. 

 
6.8 The successful proposer will be required to provide evidence of an applicable 

current business license. 
 

6.9 The Contractor shall provide a drug-free workplace for Contractor's employees. 
Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 
for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacturer, 
sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or 
marijuana is prohibited in Contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that 
will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition. Contractor shall 
state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of 
Contractor that Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace. Contractor shall 
include these provisions in every subcontract or purchase order of over 
$10,000 so that these requirements are binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 

 
(Virginia Code §2.2-4312) 

 
6.10 During the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees as follows: 

 
A. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, 
disability, or other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination 
in employment, except where there is a bona fide occupational qualification 
reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the contractor. The 
Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

 
B. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such contractor is an equal 
opportunity employer. 

 
C. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal 

law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting 
the requirements of this section. 

 
The contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs A, B, and C 
in every subcontract or purchase order of over $10,000, so that the provisions will 
be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 



Page 8 of 13  

 

(Virginia Code §2.2-4311) 
 

6.11 The Contractor does not, and shall not during the performance of this Agreement, 
knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as defined in the federal Immigration 
Reform and Control Act of 1986. 

 
(Virginia Code §2.2-4311.1) 

 
6.12 If the Contractor is organized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability 

company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a registered limited 
liability partnership, he shall be authorized to transact business in the 
Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity if so, required by Title 
13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law. Contractor shall not allow its 
existence to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business 
in the Commonwealth to be revoked or cancelled at any time during the term of 
this Agreement. 

 
6.13 PAYMENT CLAUSES 

 
A. The Contractor shall take one of the two following actions within seven 

days after receipt of amounts paid to him by the County for work performed 
by a subcontractor under the Agreement: 

 
1. Pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total 

payment received from the County attributable to the work 
performed by the subcontractor under the Agreement; or 

 
2. Notify the County and subcontractor, in writing, of his intention to 

withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment and the reason 
for nonpayment. 

 
B. The Contractor shall pay interest to the subcontractor on all amounts owed 

by the Contractor that remain unpaid after seven days following receipt by 
the Contractor of payment from the County for work performed by the 
subcontractor under the Agreement, except for amounts withheld as 
allowed in subsection A. 

 
C. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this Agreement, interest shall 

accrue at the rate of one percent per month. 
 

D. The Contractor shall include in each of its subcontracts a provision 
requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be subject to the same 
payment and interest requirements with respect to each lower-tier 
subcontractor. 



Page 9 of 13  

E. The Contractor's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor 
pursuant to the payment clause in this section shall not be construed to be 
an obligation of the state agency or agency of local government. No 
modification to this Agreement shall be made for the purpose of providing 
reimbursement for the interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim shall 
not include any amount for reimbursement for the interest charge. 

 
F. The Contractor shall provide to the County (i) his social security number if 

an individual, or (ii) the federal employer identification number if a 
proprietorship, partnership, or corporation. 

 
(Virginia Code §2.2-4354) 

 
6.14 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless County and its officers, agents, 

volunteers, and employees against any and all liability, losses, damages, claims, 
causes of action, suits of any nature, costs, and expenses, including reasonable 
attorney' s fees, resulting from or arising out of Contractor's or its agent's or 
subcontractor's negligent activities or omissions on or near any of the County's 
property or easements, or arising out of or resulting from Contractor's negligence 
in providing any of the services under this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, fines and penalties, violations of federal, state, or local laws, or 
regulations promulgated thereunder, or any personal injury, wrongful death, or 
property damage claims of any type. 

 
6.15 No payment, final or otherwise, nor partial or entire use or acceptance of 

Contractor's work by the County shall constitute acceptance of any professional 
services not in accordance with the Agreement, nor shall the same relieve the 
Contractor of any responsibility for any errors or omissions in connection with the 
Project or operate to release the Contractor from any obligation under the 
Agreement. 

 
6.16 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, codes 

and regulations currently in force or subsequently adopted, including terms and 
provisions of all Russell County Ordinances. 

 
6.17 The claims procedure established pursuant to Virginia Code §2.2-4363 shall apply 

to any contractual disputes arising under this Agreement. 
 

6.18 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is adjudged or decreed to be 
invalid , such ruling shall not invalidate the entire Agreement but shall pertain only 
to the provision in question and the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid, 
binding, and in full force and effect. 

 
6.19 The County does not discriminate against faith-based organizations, and enters 

contracts described in this sub-paragraph on the same basis as any other 
nongovernmental source without impairing the religious character of such 



Page 10 of 13  

organization, and without diminishing the religious freedom of the beneficiaries of 
assistance provided under this section. 

 
A. " Faith-based Organization" means a religious organization that is or applies to 

be a Vendor to provide goods or services for programs funded by the block 
grant provided pursuant to the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 
Reconciliation Act of 1996, P.L. 104-193, as amended. 

 
B. If a Vendor is a faith-based organization, then the Vendor must give to each 

individual who applies for or receives goods, services, or disbursements 
provided pursuant to this Agreement the following notice in bold-faced 
type: 

 
NOTICE: 

 
Neither the County's selection of a charitable or faith-based provider of 
services nor the expenditure of funds under this contract is an endorsement of 
the provider's charitable or religious character, practices, or expression. No 
provider of services may discriminate against you based on religion, a religious 
belief, or your refusal to actively participate in a religious practice. If you 
object to a particular provider because of its religious character, you may 
request assignment to a different provider. If you believe that your rights have 
been violated, please discuss the complaint with your provider or notify the 
appropriate person as indicated in this form. 

 
6.20 Contractor shall, at the County's request, provide documentation of their authority to 

transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
 
7.0 CONTRACT TERM AND CONDITIONS 

 
7.1 The initial term of this contract agreement shall commence January 1, 2020 and 

extend through December 31, 2020. Russell County at its option may extend the 
initial term for up to four (4) additional, one (1) year periods, to be mutually 
negotiated at a reasonable time prior to the annual expiration date of December 31 
of the respective year. Depending upon proposals received, the County may 
determine that it is in their best interest to contract with more than one firm. 

 
7.2 It is understood that the basis for contract pricing is an hourly rate structure, 

however the County may request a total not to exceed price for specific projects, 
based upon a scope of work provided. Terms, conditions and pricing of this 
contractual arrangement may be extended to the Russell County School Board, 
Russell County Public Service Authority and the Industrial Development 
Authority of Russell County, when so requested and at the discretion of the County. 

 
7.3 A. This contract may be terminated by Russell County upon not less than thirty 

(30) days written notice to the contractor for the County' s convenience and 
without cause. In the event of such termination, the 



Page 11 of 13  

contractor shall be compensated for satisfactory services performed prior 
to termination. 

 
B.     Any sub-agreement for services to be provided for specific projects as 

authorized under this contract, whether by Russell County or other eligible 
cooperative purchasing public body, may be terminated upon a thirty (30) 
day written notice to the contractor. In the event of such termination, the 
contractor shall be compensated for satisfactory services performed prior to 
termination. 

 
7.4 The anticipated form of a resulting contract shall include a narrative description of 

negotiated terms, conditions and cost; the original Request for Proposals, Addenda 
information and proposal response. 

 
8.0 INSURANCE 

 
8.1 The Contractor shall procure, maintain, and provide proof of insurance coverage 

for injuries to persons and/or property damage as may arise from or in connection 
with the work performed on behalf of Russell County by the Contractor, his agents, 
representatives, employees or sub-contractors. Such coverage shall be maintained 
by the Contractor for the duration of the contract period. 

 
Minimum Coverage and Limits: 

 
1. General Liability $2,000,000 combined single limit s per occurrence. 

 
2. Worker' s Compensation: As required by the Worker's Compensation Act 

of Virginia. 
 

3. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 

8.2 All Coverage 
 

A. The insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against Amherst 
County, its officers/officials, agents, employees and volunteers for losses 
arising from work performed by the Contractor. 

 
B. The insurer shall provide 30 days written notice to Russell County before 

any cancellation, suspension or void of any coverage in whole or part where 
such provision is reasonable. 

 
8.3 Verification of Coverage 

 
The contractor shall furnish Russell County certificates of insurance with 
endorsements affecting coverage. The certificates and endorsements are to be 
signed by a person authorized by the insurance company to bind coverage on its 



Page 12 of 13  

behalf. The certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
County before commencement of work by the contractor. 

 
8.4 Sub-Contractors 

 
All coverage for sub-contractors of the Contractor shall be subject to all the 
requirements stated herein. 

 
9.0 PAYMENT TERMS 

 
Russell County will make payment in full within 30 days of submission of an itemized 
invoice, and acceptance of work by the County. Invoice(s) should be submitted on a no 
more frequent than monthly basis. 

 
10.0 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT 

 
10.1 Pursuant to the Code of Virginia, §2.2-4304 "Cooperative Procurement", and 

Russell County's Request for Proposals Number 3354, this agreement is available 
for use by all "public bodies" as defined by §2.2-4301 and referenced by 
§2.2-4304 of the Code of Virginia. 

 
10.2 Any public body desiring to utilize services described in this Request for Proposals 

must notify the Russell County Purchasing Department of their intentions to do so. 
Russell County shall have no responsibilities for cooperative procurement contract 
agreements for public bodies other than themselves. 

 
11.0 PROPOSAL CONTENT 

  
Proposers should address, but need not be limited to, all requirements listed herein, with a 
written proposal and should not assume that an opportunity will exist to add such matters 
after the proposal is submitted. 

 
11.1   Provide all contact information and brief background of your firm and its capabilities. 

Please sate the location of your firm’s headquarters and any branch offices. 
 

11.2 Identify the primary officers of your firm and describe credentials and experience 
of employees who would be assigned to the proposed project. Please state the 
number of persons employed by your firm with required training and qualifications 
relative to the Scope of Service requested in this Request for Proposals. 

 
11.3 List at least three (3) references with contact information (include telephone 

number) for which your firm has provided similar services to those requested in the 
previous three (3) years. 



Page 13 of 13  

11.4 Provide evidence of your ability to provide minimum insurance coverage 
requirements as specified in Section 8.0 of this document. 

 
11.5 Please provide a brief narrative description of your understanding of the contractual 

cost arrangement requested. Provide your proposed hourly rate(s) for the discipline 
or disciplines proposed to meet the requirements of this Request for Proposals. 

 
12.0 PROPOSAL SELECTION PROCESS 

 
12.1 This Request for Proposals is part of a competitive procurement process which 

helps to serve the best interest of Russell County. It also provides firms with a fair 
opportunity for their services to be considered. The process of competitive 
negotiation being used in this case should not be confused with the different 
process of "competitive sealed bidding". The latter process is usually used where 
goods and/or services being purchased can be precisely described and price is 
usually the sole determining factor. With competitive negotiation on the other 
hand, price is not required to be the sole determining factor, although it may be, 
and Russell County has the flexibility that it needs to negotiate with one or more 
firms to arrive at a mutually agreeable relationship. Offeror's are to make written 
proposals which present the offeror's qualifications and understanding of the work 
to be performed. Offeror's are asked to address each evaluation criterion and to be 
specific in presenting their qualifications. Your proposal should provide all the 
information which you consider pertinent to your qualifications for the project. 

 
12.2 Selection shall be made of two (2) or more offerors deemed to be fully qualified 

and best suited among those submitting proposals, based on the factors involved in 
the Request for Proposals. Negotiations shall then be conducted with each of the 
offerors so selected. Price shall be considered but need not be the sole determining 
factor. After negotiations have been conducted with each offeror so selected, 
Russell County shall select the offeror which, in its option, has made the best 
proposal and shall award the contract to that offeror. 

 
13.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS 

 
13.1 All proposals submitted will be reviewed and evaluated by a representative 

committee for the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 
13.2 Following is the specific evaluation criteria to be used for judging proposals and 

the total possible point value to be assigned to each evaluation factor. The 
maximum poss1'ble score that a proposal could receive is 100 points. 

EVALUATION CRITERIA POINTS 
A. Firms' qualifications to provide the required services. 35 
B. Experience. 30 
C References. 10 
D. Cost. 25 

 



 
 

 
 

 
Curtis Elswick, CCM, LEED® AP 
Sr. Vice President/Regional Executive 

 
Skanska USA Building Inc. 
Integrated Solutions 

  
 Phone:  540-423-2860 

Email: curtis.elswick@skanska.com 

 

 

January 17, 2020 
 
  
Mr. Lonzo Lester, VCO 
County Administrator 
Russell County, Virginia 

137 Highland Drive 

P.O. Box 1208 

Lebanon, VA 24266 

 
 
RE:  Russell County Courthouse Renovation/Expansion PPEA 
 Project Management Services 
 
 
Dear Mr. Lester:  
 

We are very pleased to submit this proposal to Russell County, VA (the “County”) to provide 

Project Management Services on the Russell County Courthouse Renovation/Expansion 

project.  It is our understanding that the County is seeking assistance with implementing the 

design and construction of this project under the PPEA process.  Skanska has recently served 

or is serving as project manager on several PPEA projects throughout the region including the 

Dickenson County Judicial Center, Buchanan County Courthouse Renovation & Expansion, 

Montgomery County Public Schools New Middle and High Schools, Dickenson County Public 

Schools New Elementary School and the proposed Intermediate School for Bristol Virginia 

Public Schools.  We look forward to leveraging this experience to deliver a successful project 

for the County. 

 

General Project Information  

The current Russell County Courthouse is a two and three-story building of roughly 44,000 SF 

to include courthouse, jail, addition and miscellaneous space.  The size of the building needs 

to be verified.  The original section was a two-story building constructed in 1874. Later 

additions include a significant three-story jail addition to the northwest of the original section 

and a three-story addition to the east. 

 



   

 Mr. Lonzo Lester 

January 17, 2020 
 

 

 

  

 

 
Russell County Courthouse – 53 East Main Street, Lebanon, Virginia 24266                   Bing Aerial Image  

 

It is our understanding that current issues with the existing courthouse include: 

• Space needs and security concerns as well as needed upgrades to the facility. 

• Restroom facilities outside combined courtroom are inadequate. 

• Additional private hearing space is needed. 

• General District Court is held five days per week in one courtroom. 

• Waiting areas are needed as currently the hallway outside of the courtrooms is beings 

used as a waiting area and is not a good situation. 

• The alley adjacent to the courthouse is a security concern.  There is no secure parking, 

no sally port, so separate stairs or elevators for judges, etc.  Inmates/detainees from 

the regional jail are brought to the courthouse via a van which is parked outside the 

courthouse and then escorted across the alley into the building. 

• Front doors of courthouse remain locked as there are ADA issues (no way for someone 

in wheelchair to access the front door). 

• Adequate parking. 

• The jail (which is a part of the courthouse building) is empty and not being used. 

• A facility condition assessment has not been completed nor has a HAZMAT survey. 

 

Based upon our understanding of the issues and needs as well as our understanding of the 

PPEA process and recent experience managing similar courthouse renovation and expansion 

projects, we propose providing the following services as your project manager: 

 

 



   

 Mr. Lonzo Lester 

January 17, 2020 
 

 

 

  

 

Due Diligence Phase and PPEA Procurement Phase (January 2020 – October 2020) 

 

• Review existing information provided by the County to include security evaluation 

report, existing building drawings, and other relevant information. 

• Develop a milestone project schedule and management of the schedule to ensure all 

parties are meeting deadlines in order to maintain progress. 

• Assist with procurement of any other services required during this phase of the project 

which may include geotechnical engineering, HAZMAT surveys or other specialty 

services required to develop a RFP for PPEA design-build services. 

• Assist the County with development of a PPEA solicitation for design-build services.  

This would include overseeing the development of a program document and 

conceptual floor plans & elevations that would be incorporated into the PPEA 

solicitation.  We recently helped nearby Buchanan County, VA and Dickenson County, 

VA with development of PPEA procurement documentation, evaluation of PPEA 

proposals, contract negotiations, and overall project management through the design, 

construction and closeout phases of their new Judicial Center.  This experience will be 

of significant value to the County in terms of time and money as we can help 

implement a process that has already proven to be successful and alleviate any 

additional burden on the County’s resources. 

• Establish and manage the overall project budget on your behalf and alert the County of 

any issues that may have a positive or negative impact on the budget during this phase 

of the project. 

• Develop a job cost accounting process for the County so that all invoices are accounted 

for and paid in a timely manner and a monthly reconciliation process is implemented. 

• Issue monthly progress report to the County and presentations to the Board of 

Supervisors or other stakeholders as required. 

• Overall leadership of the project working under the direction of the County including 

facilitation of meetings and decisions necessary to maintain progress. 

 

Design/Construction/Closeout Phase (October 2020 – September 2023) 

 

Our role as a key member of the project team will be to represent your interests throughout 

the duration of the projects.  We will not attempt to fill the role of the design team or general 

contractor and will not be responsible for design or construction means and methods, 

however, we will manage the overall project on your behalf in order to assist Russell County 

with the successful delivery of the project. 

 

• Assistance with negotiation, development, and administration of the Interim 

Agreement and Comprehensive Agreement between Russell County and the selected 

Design-Build PPEA firm. 

• Act as liaison to Russell County and update representatives of the County and public, 

as required. 

• Coordination of Owner decisions. 



   

 Mr. Lonzo Lester 

January 17, 2020 
 

 

 

  

 

• Development of a master project milestone schedule with continuous monitoring and 

as-needed updates. 

• Validation and management of the Project Budget. 

• Assist the Architect/Engineer and Russell County with implementation of an Owner 

Direct Purchase Process (ODPP). 

• Development of an estimated cash flow drawdown schedule with monthly updates. 

• Review of design documents to confirm scope and to identify constructability and life 

safety issues.  Advise and recommend value management options and alternatives.  

• Analysis of Design-Builder’s cost estimates and GMP package. 

• Review of bonds and insurance submitted by the Design-Builder. 

• Assistance with procurement of other consultants and contractors and coordination of 

other consultants including geotechnical engineering, HAZMAT abatement monitoring, 

testing & special inspections, and other related services. 

• Assistance in the permitting process. 

• Management of allowances and contingencies included in the GMP or Contract Cost 

Limit (CCL). 

• Pay application and invoice processing. 

• Review and approval of the Design-Builder’s schedule of values and initial schedule. 

• Tracking of design and construction deliverables including participation in the RFI, ASI, 

and submittal review process. 

• Provide personnel on the site on a routine basis during the construction period to 

monitor and ascertain that the specified levels of materials and workmanship quality 

are being provided.  Review mock-ups required by the construction documents.  

Report quality-control deficiencies and suggested corrective actions to the Owner’s 

representative and Architect/Engineer and monitor the directed corrective actions.  

Monitor construction activity to ensure compliance with construction schedules. 

• Monitoring of construction activity to ensure compliance with construction schedules. 

Analysis of schedules presented by the Design-Builder including evaluation of impacts 

to the schedule related to RFIs or change order proposals. 

• Participation in project meetings to include progress meetings with Design-Builder, 

Owner meetings and Board of Supervisor presentations. 

• Issuance of monthly progress reports. Maintain a running list of action items required 

by the project team in order to keep the project on schedule. 

• Move planning services (as required): 

o Taking inventory of all items that will be moved to a temporary facility (or new 

addition), discarded at time of move, or placed in storage. 

o Work with the County to ensure all items to be moved will fit in spaces identified 

in and have the appropriate infrastructure in place (electrical and data outlets, 

etc.) as well as identifying the extent of renovation work that must take place to 

accommodate staff and court functions. 

o Developing a move schedule to include purchase of any new IT or security 

equipment and other items, setup of computers and servers and Supreme 

Court equipment, storage of items, and move efforts. 



   

 Mr. Lonzo Lester 

January 17, 2020 
 

 

 

  

 

• Project closeout including coordination of Owner training, delivery of attic stock, 

operations & maintenance manuals, final lien waivers, warranties, and final 

accounting. 

• Preparation of owner punchlists and ensuring completion of all punchlists. 

• Coordination of owner training activities and delivery/storage of attic stock material. 

 

 

For purposes of development of our proposal, we have prepared the following preliminary 

milestone project schedule which serves as the basis for our proposed Lump Sum Fee: 

 
Procure Skanska as Project Manager Jan 24, 2020

Due Diligence Period: Obtain Geotech Report and HAZMAT Survey, etc. January - March 2020

Prepare PPEA RFP for Conceptual Phase Proposals March 2020

Issue PPEA RFP for Conceptual Phase Proposals March 2020

PPEA Conceptual Phase Proposals Due End of April 2020/Early May 2020

Announce Shortlist of Firms May 2020

Request Detailed Phase Proposals May 2020

Detailed Stage Proposal Due by August 2020

Presentation of Detailed Stage Proposal and Interviews, Select Team August-September 2020

Public Hearing Regarding Detailed Stage Proposal and Interim Agreement September-October 2020

Execute Interim Agreement October 2020

Submit Design Development Package (65%) for Review November 2020

Submit Design Development Cost Estimate for Review December 2020

Complete Owner Review of Design Development Package December 2020

95%/GMP Design Package Due March 2021

Owner Review of 95%/GMP Design Package March-April 2021

Submit GMP Package to Owner May 2021

Reconcile 95%/GMP Design Review Comments May 2021

Finalize Draft Comprehensive Agreement for Posting for Public Hearing June 2021

Post/Issue Draft Comprehensive Agreement/GMP Contract June 2021

Public Hearing on GMP/CA June 2021

100% Design Documents Due July 2021

End of 30 Day Notice Period for Comprehensive Agreement July 2021

BOS Meeting to Approve GMP/Comprehensive Agreement July 2021

Execute Comprehensive Agreement/GMP Contract (with bonds, insurance) July 2021

Notice to Proceed/Construction Commences July 2021

Substantial Completion (up to 24 months) Summer 2023

Final Completion End of September 2023  
 

Our proposal assumes our services will start the end of January 2020 and will be needed 

through the end of September 2023 (approximately 44 months), at which time construction 

will be complete and contracts with the design-build team on the Courthouse 

Renovation/Addition are closed out from a financial perspective. Skanska reserves the right to 

request additional compensation for continued services should Final Completion be delayed 

beyond September 2023. Skanska understands that any such compensation must be in the 

form of a written modification, approved by the Owner.  

 

 



   

 Mr. Lonzo Lester 

January 17, 2020 
 

 

 

  

 

Compensation: 

 

We propose providing the above scope of services for a Lump Sum Fee of $617,000.  This 

Lump Sum Fee is inclusive of all expenses related to our services with the exception of any 

printing of any special presentation materials or printing of documents larger than 11” X 17” 

in size.  It is our assumption that the County or the Design-Build Team will provide Skanska a 

jobsite office and furniture during construction.  Our services will be billed on a monthly basis 

based upon services rendered. 

  

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Curtis Elswick, CCM, LEED® AP  
Sr. Vice President/Regional Executive 



Skanska Fee Proposal Structure - Confidential

Hours by Position

Russell County Courthouse Renovation & Addition

9 months 32 months 3 months

9 32 3

Position

Due Diligence & 

PPEA Procurement 

Phase

(1/20-10/20)

Design and 

Construction Phase

(10/20-6/23)

Closeout

(7/23-9/23)

Total Estimated 

Hours

Proposed 

Billable Hourly 

Rate

Total Proposed 

Fee

Sr. Project Manager/QA Inspector* 624 2,217 104 2,944 120$                  353,328$            

Sr. Project Engineer** 0 2,217 104 2,321 90$                     208,879$            

Total Proposed Staff Fee: 562,207$            

 Expenses: 54,793$               

Time Commitment (Average Time Per Week): Total Contract Value: 617,000$            

Assumptions and Clarifications:

3. Hourly rates above assume rate for 2020 and cost of living adjustments through 2023.

2. Included in Expenses above is all travel by project team, printing and copying of documents other than documents larger 

* Sr. Project Manager/QA Inspector = 16 hours/week during Due Diligence & PPEA Procurement Phase, 16 hours/week during 

Design and Construction Phase, and 8 hours/week during Closeout Phase

** Sr. Project Engineer = 16 hours/week during Design and Construction Phase, and 8 hours/week during Closeout Phase

1. No cost is included for jobsite office and furniture as this is assumed to be provided by Owner or through design-build 

contractor.



From: Elswick, Curtis
To: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
Subject: Courthouse Renovation and Addition
Date: Monday, January 20, 2020 9:34:09 AM
Attachments: Skanska Inserts.docx

Lonzo:
 
It was a pleasure meeting you last week and having a chance to discuss the Courthouse Renovation
and Addition project as well as the PPEA process.  I am working on our proposal but wanted to send
you a list of initial action items that I wrote down so that I don’t miss anything.
 

·       Skanska proposal to Russell County (Curtis) – both lump sum and hourly rates & hours
·       County provide Skanska contract for services (Lonzo) – see attached inserts requested by

Skanska to be incorporated into the contract
·       Provide Skanska copy of County’s PPEA Guidelines (Lonzo)
·       Confirm County’s procurement policy regarding sole source limits, # of proposals under

certain dollar limits, etc. (Lonzo)
·       Request proposals for geotechnical engineer report and HAZMAT survey  - utilize DGS

contract if applicable (Curtis)
·       Provide Skanska copy of security evaluation (Lonzo)
·       Establish courthouse project committee (County)
·       Determine viability of acquiring property across Court Avenue (County)
·       Finalize list of issues/needs for PPEA RFP (Team)

 
Please review and let me know if I left anything out and if you have any questions or additional
thoughts.
 
Thanks,
 
Curtis
 
 
Curtis Elswick, CCM, LEED AP
Senior Vice President/Regional Executive
Skanska USA Building Inc.
 
Phone +1 540 423 2860
Mobile +1 540 423 2860
Skanska USA
usa.skanska.com
Connect With Us: Blog | Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn | Instagram | YouTube
 
Think twice before you press "print."
This message, including any attachments hereto, may contain privileged or confidential information and is sent solely for the
attention and use of the intended addressee(s). If you are not an intended addressee, you may neither use this message nor
copy or deliver it to anyone. In such case, you should immediately destroy this message and kindly notify the sender by reply
email. Thank you.
 

mailto:Curtis.Elswick@skanska.com
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
http://usa.skanska.com/
http://usa.skanska.com/blog
http://usa.skanska.com/facebook
http://usa.skanska.com/twitter
http://usa.skanska.com/linkedin
http://usa.skanska.com/instagram
http://usa.skanska.com/youtube

Insert 1



The recommendations, advice, budgetary information and schedules to be furnished by Contractor under this Agreement shall not be deemed to be representations, warranties, or guarantees or constitute the performance of licensed professional services. Further, Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of architecture or engineering.  Contractor shall cause any such services to be provided by a properly licensed design professional.  Any claim by Owner for damage, loss, or expense, based directly or indirectly upon acts, errors, or omissions of any architect, engineer, or other design professional who Contractor is required to engage in connection with this Agreement shall be made by Owner against said design professional and its insurer(s) only, and Contractor shall have no liability of any kind, direct or indirect, for the professional negligence of said design professional under this Agreement or otherwise.



Insert 2



In no event shall Contractor’s liability arising out of or in connection with the performance or nonperformance of any or all Services or other obligations under this Agreement exceed the total amount paid to Contractor under this Agreement, whether based on delay, contract, tort, negligence, strict liability, warranty, indemnity, error and omissions or otherwise, provided that such limitation of liability shall not apply to Contractor’s  indemnity obligations for claims asserted against the Owner by third parties for personal injury or tangible property damage caused by the negligence of the Contractor or its employees, and provided further that such limitation shall not apply to amounts actually paid from the professional liability insurance Contractor is required to maintain pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 



Insert 3

[bookmark: _GoBack] 

Neither Party shall be liable under or in connection with this Agreement for any consequential, special, incidental, indirect, punitive or exemplary damages, or damages arising from or in connection with loss of use, loss of revenue, loss of actual or anticipated profit, loss by reason of delay, increased cost of construction or cost of capital, whether based on delay, contract, tort, negligence, strict liability, warranty, indemnity, error and omission or otherwise, and each Party hereby releases the other from any such liability.  Nothing within this Contract shall limit Client’s payment obligations under the Agreement.  

































January 24, 2020 

RESOLUTION 

 

Urging the Virginia General Assembly to Support  
“Get a Skill, Get a Job, Give Back” (G3) Initiative. 

 

WHEREAS, Virginia’s economic competitiveness depends on filling 2.6 million jobs by the year 2026 which will require 
more than a high school diploma but less than a bachelor’s degree; and  

WHEREAS, the availability of a well-trained and educated workforce is the top concern of businesses in Southwest 
Virginia Community College’s service area consisting of Buchanan, Dickenson, Russell, and Tazewell counties; and 

WHEREAS, two out of five Virginia households are within the ALICE population, who work hard and earn more than the 
official federal poverty level but less than the basic cost of living; and 

WHEREAS, no fewer than twenty-three states, including Maryland, Tennessee, West Virginia, and Kentucky – and six of 
the nation’s ten states ranked highest for their economy and workforce – offer their residents opportunities to pursue 
community college programs at greatly reduced, and in some cases no, tuition costs; and  

WHEREAS, three of the four counties in the College’s service area generously cover the cost of tuition for select 
populations of students, there is a significant need for additional funding for underserved groups; and 

WHEREAS, a modest and fiscally-responsible plan has been offered to provide low- and middle-income Virginia 
students more affordable access to a select group of community college programs leading to good jobs in high-demand 
and high-value career fields; and 

WHEREAS, the G3 plan seeks to include VCCS FastForward training programs and leverage that program’s success into 
new pathway models designed to accommodate students’ real-life needs; and 

WHEREAS, the high-demand fields in the G3 plan (technology, healthcare, skilled trades, early childhood education, and 
public safety) typically lead to wage gains of 60 percent for graduates and double what they contribute to Virginia’s 
General Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the G3 plan encourages effective college-employer partnerships by including resources for apprenticeship 
related instruction; and 

WHEREAS, the G3 plan promotes economic and social equity by making life-changing and family-supporting 
postsecondary credentials more accessible and affordable to every Virginian; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors that the “Get a Skill, Get a Job, 
Give Back” (G3) proposal, and the benefits it promises to Virginia students and businesses is worthy of our support and 
advocacy for this transformative initiative. 

 

 

                                                                                  




































































	Aknowledgements.pdf
	Meeting:   2/3/20         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 2/3/20           6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 2/3/20     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Noise Ordinance (Draft).pdf
	NOISE CONTROL
	Section 2. Definitions.
	Section 3. Noise disturbances – Prohibited generally.
	Section 4. Same – Specific prohibitions.
	Section 5. Same – Exceptions.

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 2/3/20               6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 2/3/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Russell County RFP-002 Project Manager Services.pdf
	RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)
	1.0 PURPOSE
	2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES
	3.0 CONTACT PERSON(S)
	4.0 PROPOSAL ISSUING AND CLOSING
	5.0 PROPOSAL SUBMISSION
	6.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS
	NOTICE:
	7.0 CONTRACT TERM AND CONDITIONS

	8.0 INSURANCE
	9.0 PAYMENT TERMS
	10.0 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT
	11.0 PROPOSAL CONTENT
	12.0 PROPOSAL SELECTION PROCESS
	13.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATIONS



